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Sales EUR mill. 873.4 750.4 662.3 623.1 560.3

Growth in sales % 16.4 13.3 6.3 11.2 3.6

Comprehensive income EUR mill. 60.9 53.4 43.3 28.4 18.3

as a % of sales % 7.0 7.1 6.5 4.6 3.3

Employees (annual average) 5,328 4,288 3,944 3,836 3,267

Cash flow from operating activities EUR mill. 66.6 76.7 45.2 34.4 45.1

ROCE % 30.0 29.2 25.2 20.3 16.3

EBIT EUR mill. 102.1 87.4 70.3 49.0 35.0

as a % of sales % 11.7 11.6 10.6 7.9 6.2

EBITDA EUR mill. 129.7 114.7 94.4 71.0 54.4

as a % of sales % 14.9 15.3 14.3 11.4 9.7

Investments EUR mill. 58.2 38.6 26.7 59.6 31.3

as a % of cash flow from operating activities % 87.4 50.3 59.1 173.3 69.4

Depreciation EUR mill. 27.7 27.3 24.1 22.0 19.4

R&D expenditure EUR mill. 24.1 21.7 19.4 18.5 16.8

as a % of sales % 2.8 2.9 2.9 3.0 3.0

Equity EUR mill. 265.5 230.3 191.0 154.6 141.4

Equity ratio % 42.7 45.1 42.8 36.9 40.0

Earnings per share1) EUR 6.12 5.36 4.33 2.84 1.83

WILO Group figures

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Western Europe3) 315.8 36.2 235.2 42.0 7.6

Germany 181.7 20.8 119.9 21.4 11.0

Eastern Europe 182.9 20.9 88.6 15.8 19.6

Asia 158.8 18.2 96.3 17.2 13.3

Other regions 34.2 3.9 20.3 3.6 13.9

Total 873.4 100.0 560.3 100 11.7

Regional sales development 2002 - 2006

(EUR mill.) 2006 in % 2002 in % CAGR2) %

Heating and air-conditioning 528.4 60.5 365.6 65.3 9.6

Water supply and sewage treatment 303.2 34.7 158.5 28.3 17.6

Other segments 41.8 4.8 36.2 6.4 3.7

Total 873.4 100.0 560.3 100.0 11.7

Sales development by business segment 2002 - 2006

(EUR mill.) 2006 in % 2002 in % CAGR2) %

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

6.2 7.9 10.6 11.6 11.7

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

45.1 34.4 45.2 76.7 66.6

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

560.3 623.1 662.3 750.4 873.4

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

3,267 3,836 3,944 4,288 5,328

EBIT as a % of sales Cash flow from operating activities
in EUR mill.

Sales revenue in EUR mill. Employees (annual average)
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Footnotes to the overview on the left:
The figures for 2005 have been adjusted as a result of changes to disclosures and accounting policies in 2006. (More detailed information is provided in the Notes [7.]). The adjustments pertain to cash flow from
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1)As of 2006, earnings per share has been calculated after deduction of minority interest. The figures for 2005 have been appropriately adjusted (see [8.12] in the Notes). The figures for the financial years 2002 to
2004 have not been adjusted.
2)Compound annual growth rate
3)Not including Germany
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Outperforming global growth.

Progressive international expansion.

Overall, we achieved our strategic goals for 2006. This applies

equally to our three global aims of extending our innovation

leadership, improving customer satisfaction and motivating

our employees. The integration of the Indian companies that

we acquired (Mather & Platt and ACP) has progressed accord-

ing to plan. The takeover of the UK pump manufacturer

Circulating Pumps Ltd. has consolidated our brand portfolio

and our presence in the British market. In China, a newly

established production facility has commenced production

of electric motors for dry rotor pumps. The East German

production facility in Oschersleben has been expanded to

accommodate a pressure booster platform, which now

makes it one of the most competitive WILO sites in Europe.

Other aspects that were instrumental to development were

the constructive agreements with the works council and the

employees on working hours and fringe benefits. On the

whole, the WILO Group has been moving closer to its strategic

goal of crossing the EUR 1 bill. sales threshold in 2009

much faster than planned. This can also be said of the results

targets. The synthesis of a family business and a flexible, flat

decision-making organisation, coupled with the professional

structures and business processes of a globally operating

group, has again proved to be an essential factor of success.

It enables speed, demand orientation and close customer

relations. All the target groups of installers, architects, plan-

ners, investors and operators benefit to the same extent. 

Ambitious targets for 2007.

We started 2007 with optimism, trusting our own power

to shape the future. The focus is still on gradually moving

closer to the aforementioned sales target EUR 1 bill. while

sustaining our profitability. 

We have again budgeted for double-digit growth rates in all

key markets – with the exception of Germany and France.

With record worldwide sales of EUR 873.4 mill., the WILO Group

has managed to sustain its successful development over the

previous years. Net growth in sales was 16% and Group

sales have risen by over 60% since 2001 in a highly compe-

titive international market environment. 

Our Group’s growth once again surpassed the average growth

in the relevant markets. We have also acquired additional

market shares. The strongest upturn in business activity was

recorded in the water and sewage sectors. However, we also

realised double-digit growth in our core business of building

services engineering. 

The ambitious Group targets were surpassed by almost 10%.

Demand for our pumps was still clearly on the increase

during the second half of 2006, which pushed our production

facilities in Germany, France, England, Ireland, Italy, India,

South Korea and China to their production capacity limits.

Supply bottlenecks affecting electric motors and other com-

ponents had to be rectified. 

In the year under review, purchasing costs rose significantly

due to rising global demand for scarce raw materials. The

price for copper, which was around USD 3,500 in October

2005, has now more than doubled to almost USD 8,000. At

the end of 2006 it had already risen to USD 6,300. 

Eastern Europe and Asia have proven to be two of the most

prospering world markets, and we achieved growth rates 

of 22% and 35% respectively there. Our customer-oriented

sales activities in these markets have paid off and were

supported by the positive economic trend. 

The European economic framework has also continued to im-

prove. Germany's construction sector showed a slight upward

trend after a ten year slump. This upswing was, however,

triggered to a greater extent by replacement needs and reno-

vations than construction projects. WILO’s domestic market

of Germany will continue to be of special importance in

future due to its leading role in the area of energy efficiency

and integration in building management systems.

Developments in Southern Europe were even more positive

in 2006 and the developments in France, Italy and Spain

again exceeded our expectations. 
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The path to reaching the goal.

Rising energy prices are making investments in energy-saving

electronic and high-efficiency pumps increasingly appealing

to homeowners. National and European energy efficiency

targets for building technology are also going to steer the

trend away from unregulated standard pumps towards

modern, energy-saving alternatives. 

We will be increasing our efforts to generate consumer aware-

ness and provide them with information about saving costs

and protecting the environment. 

Efforts to increase market penetration in Asia and North

America will be intensified. These are key markets where we

have not yet achieved a leading position in the heating,

refrigeration and air-conditioning sectors, so strategic invest-

ments will be made and effective campaigns will be initiated

that enable us to outperform market growth. 

We have especially high expectations for the water supply and

sewage treatment business segment. In this segment, inten-

sified product innovation, improved competitiveness and

geographical expansion will enable us to sustain our above

average growth rate.

Trend reversal in Germany.

The Germany economy jump-started in 2006. Based on GDP

growth of 2.7% in the year under review, economic research

institutes have forecast growth for 2007 of up to 2%,  despite

the VAT increase. The International Monetary Fund (IMF)

anticipates global GDP growth of just under 5%. Although

GDP growth in Germany is still lower than the world average,

there is a high level of pent-up demand after years of invest-

ment backlogs in the area of domestic and building services

engineering. This will lead to an order increase of around 3%

in 2007 according to the industry association's forecasts.

The ISH (Frankfurt), the leading global trade fair in this 

segment, is also expecting a marked increase in demand.

WILO will continue to rely on its time-proven partnership with

sanitary, heating and air-conditioning wholesalers and traders

in future since it provides optimum market coverage and

proximity to the ultimate consumers. A functional division

of labour and the relationship of trust which has grown over

many years that we share with our distribution partners form

a platform on which we can build a positive future in the

German market. This is an area where we have always set new

trends through new initiatives. 

High staff motivation.

In 2006, one particular guiding principle of WILO’s corporate

philosophy again proved to be true. It defines our workforce

in the following terms: “Our employees are our most impor-

tant asset. The success of our entire company depends on

their commitment and creativity.” This maxim applies to all

functional areas at all of our national and international pro-

duction facilities and sales subsidiaries. 

It's already more than 10 years since we voluntarily initiated

the establishment of a European Works Council. In 2006, this

body discussed important projects, economic trends and our

investment policy with the managing board. The managing

board would like to thank the European Works Council and the

national employee representatives for their constructive and

responsible cooperation. 

A worldwide survey of over 4,000 employees has attested to

the fact that our workforce also identifies with the company.

The degree of identification that the survey established is

disproportionately high because over 80% of respondents

affirmed their strong affinity to the company. Naturally, the

survey also identified a number of areas where detailed

improvements can be made. Several work groups were set up

in 2006 to transform these findings into specific measures.

Progress founded on tradition.

2006 was the 134th year in WILO’s company history. We have

again demonstrated beyond doubt that innovations in tech-

nically sophisticated fields are impossible without solid roots

to provide the Group with strength for the future. 

On a global scale, progress and tradition can be complementary

and conducive to one another. This applies in the area of

product development and in all other functional areas, and it

also fosters a corporate culture that is characterised by trust,

openness and team spirit that has a powerful positive impact

on customer orientation.

Dortmund, April 2007

Jérôme Perrod
Operations Director

Oliver Hermes
Finance and Controlling

Director

Dr. Horst D. Elsner
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Thomas Schweisfurth
Marketing and Sales

Director
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Customers and markets –
global      presence.

Argentina
Belgium

China

Estonia

Greece

ItalySweden

Slovakia
South Africa

Czech Republic

Croatia
Lebanon Norway

Portugal

Ukraine

USA



Germany: Dom Aquarée/Radisson SAS, Berlin. Spain: Madrid Airport. Netherlands: Philipsstadion, Eindhoven. Austria: Concrete recycling, Graz.

Vietnam: Rainwater storage facility, Vinh City. China: Sewage treatment plant, Jinan. Germany: Sewage treatment plant, Bottrop. Czech Republic: Sewage treatment plant, Hradec Králové.

Switzerland: Gotthard Base Tunnel, St. Gotthard. Germany: Sinter water cycle at Salzgitter AG, Salzgitter. China: Building drainage system, Dalian. Germany: Pressure booster system at Ferrero, Stadtallendorf.
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Distribution and marketing excellence foster close customer relationships.

Asian distribution business in the year under review was

dominated by municipal water supply projects in China and

South East Asia. The integration of the Mather & Platt product

range – after a majority in the Indian Group’s shares had

been acquired in 2005 – provided valuable support. The dis-

tribution region of Asia, extending from China to Australia,

is now managed by a head office which is based in Beijing.

The central purchasing department for the region, also based

in Beijing, managed to increase the proportion of locally pro-

cured system components significantly, further improving

the company’s competitiveness.

In North America, the strong marketing efforts of WILO EMU

USA paid off and, as a result, the company was able to win

quite a few interesting competitive tenders for water supply

and wastewater disposal projects. The parent company has

provided additional resources to further strengthen its US

operations, in line with the increasing importance of the

North American markets for the Group. In Thomasville, Ga.,

the first buildings of the new regional headquarters with

storage facility, test centre and assembly lines were completed.

These new facilities allow the company to extend its product

range, respond more flexibly to its customers’ requests and

to shorten its delivery times. 

WILO USA and WILO Canada have received the UL licenses

that they require for building technology business and are

now entering a decisive stage. Thanks to a product range

which is geared to market requirements and can be shipped

promptly, the distribution department can now present the

company to the large wholesalers as a reliable alternative

provider of state-of-the-art technology. Nearly 4,000 engi-

neers in the US and Canada have meanwhile attended one

of the WILO training events, immersing themselves in the latest

knowledge about pumps and pumping facilities – something

which will shortly be reflected in a larger proportion of

energy-efficient and intelligent network solutions for heating

and air-conditioning installations in North American homes,

offices and industrial facilities.

In the year under review, WILO’s US HQ Melrose Park, IL also

received a new sales office, workshop and training centre.

The facility is now better equipped than ever to benefit from

the dynamic development of the market.

Pump system manufacturers all over the world are having to

meet the increasingly exacting requirements of operators,

planners and fitters of pumps for building technology, munici-

pal and industrial applications. Close customer relationships

and excellent application know-how are absolutely essential

if they are to provide optimised heating and air-conditioning

systems for residential and commercial buildings, as well as

water supply and sewage disposal systems. 

WILO offers its international partners effective solutions for

a wide range of applications, ranging from high efficiency

circulator pumps to extremely reliable mixers for the new

economies in Asia and Eastern Europe.

Maximum customer benefit through segment-specific 

distribution.

By extending its existing subsidiaries and establishing new

ones, WILO is constantly adapting its structures to satisfy

customer requirements of its international business partners.

The WILO distribution organisation is structured according to

market segment – with the result that even the customers

of smaller business units such as WILO Hungary can count on

the support of a distributor with specialist skills and experience

in building technology, municipal or industrial applications.

Local presence in dynamic markets.

In line with the development of global demand patterns, WILO

forged ahead in 2006 with the systematic international

expansion programme that was launched several years ago.

In June, WILO acquired Circulating Pumps Ltd. (King’s Lynn,

Norfolk/UK), a company with 150 employees which generates

annual sales of EUR 18 mill. producing of domestic circulators

for heating installations and components for water supply

systems, and with more than half of the company’s products

distributed in Western Europe. 

Late last year, WILO acquired another UK company – CCD

Pumps Ltd. (London) – which will strengthen its national service

network and widen its range of pre-assembled pressure

booster systems.

Market presence in the East / South East distribution area has

been consolidated to a great extent by the establishment

of WILO Caspian in Azerbaijan. It guarantees that the rapid

growth achieved over the past few years can also continue

in this region of booming economies. Despite intense com-

petition from other manufacturers for a – still fairly limited –

supply of skilled distribution engineers, WILO has succeeded

in recruiting a customer-focused and experienced team.
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Customer satisfaction is the key.

For the past four years, WILO has been developing ways of

subjecting its corporate performance to impartial tests in

order to address any issues as quickly as possible and to enable

the continuous optimisation of its products and services. 

The central instrument for the Group’s self-critical analysis

are customer surveys which encourage the individual partner

enterprises in sales and installation to objectively assess the

products, services, product range and advice provided by the

company. In 2006, such surveys were completed in four

countries and initiated in another six. Overall it was established

that the know-how and contacting frequency of the company’s

sales representatives, the distribution back office and the

central competence team as well as the de-centralised tech-

nical customer services are second to none. More than 95%

of the company’s business partners and customers said that

they wanted to strengthen their business ties with WILO.

In 2006, WILO also continued to increase its brand awareness

and extend its range of customer services yet again. In

Germany, a complete nationwide customer service for the

municipal water supply and wastewater disposal market

segment was added to the range of services. Facilities were

created which allow the company to provide its fitters with

better support – including the option of transferring building

technology repair and maintenance contracts – and to

improve the service for pressure booster systems. 

The French subsidiary Sesem introduced a new service for

inspections of small water treatment plans and acquired

several large contracts from nationwide operators. 

In the UK, the acquisition of CCD Pumps Ltd. represented a

milestone on WILO’s path to successfully present itself as a

sustainable alternative to other providers of industrial customer

services and pre-assembled pressure booster systems.

Distribution by business segment.

WILO’s nearly 50 foreign subsidiaries, virtually all of them sales

subsidiaries, as well as the corporation’s many sales represen-

tatives and distributors are organised into seven large distri-

bution regions. Different distribution channels are used,

depending on the product segment and national conditions.

As in Germany, building technology equipment is generally

distributed from the wholesalers’ warehouses to the local

tradesmen. Most municipal and industrial facilities are supplied

directly.

Control over the distribution network is effected through a

centrally operated region-business segment matrix which

discloses monthly deviations from the growth, sales and con-

solidated profit targets of the business plan as well as the

contingents contributed by the individual subsidiaries to the

production volume of the different product groups.

All targets are derived in a rolling process from strategic

benchmark data and a medium-term plan. The extraordinary

deployment of resources for some key initiatives in certain

markets and business segments such as the high-pressure

drainage projects in some Eastern European countries has

served to add further momentum to the implementation of

corporate strategies.

A medium-term Group project to optimise the interfaces

between the central sales department, the sales back office,

accounts management and project management progressed

considerably in 2006. The project’s key objective is to provide

an internationally harmonised, SAP-based availability and

task management system which reflects the increasingly

complex structure of the corporate applications and mixed

projects. Eventually, this will reduce delivery times, improve

adherence to delivery dates and increase customer satis-

faction while meeting booming demand. 

The additional establishment of a new market segment-

oriented sales office at its Dortmund headquarters will allow

WILO to conduct its international business operations more

efficiently and to provide more effective support to its water

supply construction engineers all over the world.

Additionally, WILO and its French subsidiary Salmson have

optimised their pre-sales services in line with market require-

ments. The range of services provided by the competence

teams has been extended, and the teams are now more

easily reached by phone than before. These measures have

already received an extremely positive response from the

target groups on the market.



Customers and Markets. 2322 Customers and Markets.

This spirit of partnership between WILO and both wholesalers

and local tradesmen has over the years helped to establish a

foundation of mutual trust. WILO’s distribution partners

know they can rely on a comprehensive range of services in

marketing, sales and general advice which is unique in its

quality and depth and includes modularly integrated cata-

logues, manuals and the designated WILO Select software to

advise the end customers in the planning and design of their

facilities. 

Sales literature and tendering forms for the recruitment,

acquisition and retention of customers are also provided. WILO

furthermore enables its partners in the trade to present its

range of goods and services with the help of professionally

produced brochures. 

Tradesmen who want to advertise WILO’s products in

combination with their own services in the local media can

request WILO’s assistance for artwork and design. 

Several times per year, sales promotion campaigns for cer-

tain product groups are launched to which the company’s

distribution partners are invited to make a contribution. 

More detailed information about these activities can be

found on the internet at www.wilo.com, on the national web-

sites such as www.wilo.de and in the “Xperts“ trade journal.

Effective marketing with an international dimension.

Throughout the year under review, the international expansion

of corporate distribution operations was accompanied and

supported by both pan-European and country-specific mar-

keting initiatives. The energy efficiency campaigns in particular

have begun to trigger an increased demand from tradesmen

across Europe, having first undergone a successful test on

the discerning German market with its high market share of

regulated pumps.

A good example for this is the ongoing high-efficiency cam-

paign for the WILO Stratos and WILO Stratos ECO pumps.

Tradesmen, industrial resource managers and wholesalers

receive comprehensive support from the company’s customer

advisers and sales staff, while house owners are being

informed about the energy savings potential they can tap by

exchanging their old pump with high-efficiency equipment.

In 2006, a large-scale campaign was implemented, providing

fitters and tradesmen with a comprehensive range of sales

brochures and using several important regional trade fairs to

emphasise WILO’s role as the leading purveyor of energy-

efficient circulator pumps.

Further campaigns were conducted in the year under review

to promote a rainwater harvesting scheme and the WILO cold

water programme for pressure boosters and wastewater. In

this particular marketing segment, WILO will pursuer a stra-

tegy of close cooperation with its distribution partners: the

corporation’s own nationwide PR offensive was supported by

customised sales-promotion packages for local tradesmen.
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Throughout the years, WILO has always dedicated substantial

resources and efforts to maintaining and developing its

internal training and education system. The company’s inno-

vative concepts include the ground-breaking WILO Brain

initiative which aims to improve the understanding of complex

heating and drinking / warm water circulation systems. 

In Germany alone, several thousand installation engineers

have already acquired additional qualification certificates as a

result of successfully attending one of these courses. 

This unique offer was further extended in 2006 and more

strongly focused on the requirements of local tradesmen.

Substantial resources were allocated to the establishment of

the new WILO Brain Mobile Service which now complements

the eleven stationary Brain Centers in Germany, allowing the

regional coordination and implementation of training initia-

tives and ensuring that the full range of different seminars

is now available to individual companies or corporations of

tradesmen across the country. 

Several foreign subsidiaries have adopted WILO Brain in the

year under review and adapted it to fit their own requirements.

In the context of this programme, the European market part-

ners also received some advice in view of the forthcoming

introduction of the EU energy passport for buildings.

In all areas of operation and across all regions, WILO’s strate-

gies of segment-specific distribution, of strengthening its

local profile, of meeting the distribution requirements of its

individual business units, of continuing the internationalisa-

tion of its marketing efforts and of focusing evermore 

specifically on the needs of individual target groups are the

direct consequences of WILO’s conviction that the equation

“Highly motivated employees = high customer satisfaction 

= high shareholder returns“ is the company’s key formula 

for success. 

WILO’s marketing communication has consistently and

effectively used multi-media channels to emphasise the

customer value created by its products, systems and services.

This includes the publication of convincing evidence for the

corporate skills and competence in the application technology

for large projects – WILO and its nearly 50 international

subsidiaries provide plant engineering and construction

companies with a global network of support services. Many

examples from the corporation’s building technology core

business as well as – increasingly – from new areas such as

municipal water management and engineering demonstrate

the benefits of a close partnership with WILO for operators,

installation companies and wholesalers.

The considerable progress that has been made in the field of

technical documentation reflects the increasing international-

isation of the company and its dedication to developing

new applications. WILO’s sophisticated central system of

planning, designing, compiling and translating technical docu-

ments, catalogues and operating manuals into more than

25 languages (increasingly with the help of designated trans-

lation software) is used by a consistently rising number of

international subsidiaries.

Significant amounts of new resources have been allocated to

establish and manage a system for the real-time observation

of markets and competitors. The monthly international

market information service has developed into a highly valued

instrument for the global sales organisation.



Global success in heating,  
refrigeration and      air-conditioning applications.

Pumps to save energy and enhance comfort at the new luxury hotel on Champs-Elysées.



Heating, Refrigeration, Air-Conditioning. 2928 Customers and Markets.

Fouquet’s building technology systems incorporate Salmson pumps.

15,000 euro a night.

Five Haussmann-style residential blocks have been arranged

around the traditional Fouquet’s restaurant. Edouard Francois,

the architect, has ingeniously put together the ensemble

with impeccable style. This restaurant at the intersection

between Champs-Elysées and Avenue Georges V, which was

owned by the beverage retailer Louis Fouquet, used to be a

meeting place for automobile pioneers and aviation heroes. 

Later on, it was frequented by the actors Jean Gabin and

Alain Delon. When it carried out the conversion work at a cost

of around 75 million euro, the French hotel and casino group

Lucien Barrière ensured that the new building incorporated

state-of-the-art technology. For example, the soundproofing

is so effective that guests can have loud parties in their rooms

without disturbing the people next door.

A new luxury class hotel opened its doors on the famous

Avenue des Champs-Elysées in Paris at the beginning of

November 2006. Fouquet’s Barrière, styled by French star

designer Jacques Garcia, is celebrated as the "epitome of a

21st century palace in Paris". Unlike the other six luxury

hotels in Paris, the Crillon, Meurice, Plaza Athénée, Bristol,

Ritz and the George V, Fouquet’s doesn't boast an historical 

setting. Instead, this superlative hotel exudes modern ele-

gance, providing an interesting alternative for young, trend-

conscious and affluent guests. Classically-furnished palatial

hotels hold no interrest for in excess of thirty percent of their

luxury clientele. Show business celebrities aren't looking for

discretion or Louis VI furnishings. They want entertainment,

high-tech and contemporary design.
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State-of-the-art building technology.

High-tech equipment has also been incorporated in the build-

ing technology system. WILO's French subsidiary Salmson

supplied all the pumps for air-conditioning and heating,

pressure boosting, water supply and sanitation. The builders

and planners were delighted with Salmson's comprehensive

range of products and services throughout all phases of the

project. Electronically-regulated systems were extremely

important for the hotel's operations because they deliver

additional convenience, make an important contribution to

saving energy and have low maintenance requirements.

A total of 44 type SCX/DCX, LRL/JRL, LRE/JRE and SIL-DIL

air-conditioning and heating pumps plus two H205-2 and

H206-2 pressure booster systems were installed. An N-Alti-

VE-3602-16 pressure booster system, five type SCA-206-2.2

and UVO-208-16/10.5 pumps and two YN 6300 systems are

used for water supply and sanitation applications. Salmson

was able to deliver the perfect solution for every application

and integrate it into the hotel's building technology system.

A night in one of the 107 rooms and suites costs upwards of

690 euro for a 'mere' 40 square metres of space. The "Grande

Suite de Paris", on the other hand, is 535 square metres in size

and costs 15,000 euro per night. Breakfast is available for an

additional charge. 

As you would expect, there are an average of three staff for

every room. Guests can also make use of the 24-hour butler

service. Although the inhabitants of the 'basic' rooms share

one attendant between eight of them, the residents of the

more luxurious rooms have their own butler.

All rooms are equipped with state-of-the-art digital tech-

nology. There is a TV, video and music system, an internet

connection, a scanner, printer and photocopier integrated

in the desk and a plasma screen that emerges from a box in

front of the king-size bed at the touch of a button.



Global success in 
municipal applications.

Borehole pumps for geothermal condensers provide clean energy on Iceland.
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Pumps for electricity generated from geothermal heat.

Energetic use of the volcanic underground.

A new power station with two 50 MW steam turbines was

built in 2006 to generate electric power on the boot-shaped

peninsular, Reykjanesskagi, on the island's extreme south-

western corner, south-west of the capital city Reykjavik. The

first turbine was connected up to the grid in May, and the

second one in July. The peninsular is one of the most volcani-

cally active parts of the island. There is an extended period

of volcanic activity every 1,000 years or thereabouts. 

In 1969, a high temperature field of over 200°C was discovered

at depths of 1,000 to 2,000 m during exploratory drilling. 

In 1974, the Sudurnes municipal authority joined forces with

the government and six other municipal authorities to estab-

lish the Sudurnes high-temperature thermal power plant

(Hitaveita Sudurnesia HF), which also provides the region with

electricity. In conjunction with the Svartsengi power plant,

which generates both electrical power and district heat,

Reykjanes supplies the some 16,000 inhabitants of the region,

the US base and Keflavik airport.

Geothermal heat, which originates in the earth's interior, is a

promising renewable energy source that is gaining in signifi-

cance around the world. Iceland is the country that makes

the most extensive use of geothermal heat. This island in the

Polar Circle has an absolutely unique location at one of the

places where the Mid-Atlantic Ridge breaks the surface of 

the ocean. On Iceland, volcanic activity is driving the Eurasian

and the North American Plates apart and 53% of primary

energy is generated with geothermal heat. Five significant

geothermal power stations cover around 20% of electrical

power requirements and provide heat for 90% of the island's

domestic heating and warm water requirements.
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In extensive field tests, it was ascertained that the medium

being pumped also contained highly abrasive particles such

as sand and ash. The experts from WILO's Submersible Tech-

nology Business Unit at WILO EMU in Hof selected the largest

series submersible motor pump, KM 3100S-1, with 250 kW

electrical power and a delivery rate of 400 litres per second

at a discharge head of 47 m for the application in question. 

The pumps were manufactured in zinc-free bronze, a salt

waterproof material, to ensure their suitability for the condi-

tions in Reykjanesskagi, and the impellers were made of an

extremely wear-resistant material. 

A total of twelve pumps were installed in a vertical suspended

position on the riser. The use of these application-specific

materials and the calculation of maximum efficiency is the

basis for long-term, maintenance-free pump operation and

energy cost minimisation.

Special pumps for a highly-abrasive medium.

Pumps that bring water up from wells on the coast are

necessary to cool the main and subsidiary turbine condensers.

The water has a very high mineral content due the region's

volcanic activity, so the pumps have to be made of extremely

resistant material that WILO especially designed for the cus-

tomer’s specific requirements. The global WILO Group's

high-quality and technically superior products are based on

many years of experience and intensive development work.

They have proven their reliability a thousand times over in

the toughest of environments. WILO not only has a very

positive reputation in the pump market for its innovative and

optimised products, but also for its excellent product service

philosophy. That's why people rely on the company's special

expertise when they need solutions for complex applications.  



Global success in commercial      and 
industrial applications.

Cooling water pumps for compressors support CO2 recycling at Shell in Rotterdam.
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Reliable pumps for industrial cooling systems.

Piped fertiliser.

The Shell oil corporation operates the biggest oil refinery in

Europe near Pernis, west of Rotterdam. It emits around 6 mil-

lion tons of carbon dioxide every year. Some of the gas is

now recovered and pumped into a former oil pipeline that

runs through 85 kilometres of greenhouse landscapes from 

southern Holland to Amsterdam as part of the OCAP project

that is sponsored in a joint venture between Koninklijke

Volker Wessels Stevin NV and Hoek Loos BV. This established

a distribution network that has enabled the supply of carbon

dioxide to over 500 market gardens.

The main cause of climate change is the intensification of the

greenhouse effect as a result of the use of fossil fuels and

the resulting carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions. When the Kyoto

Protocol entered into force in 2005, the industrialised nations

that signed it undertook to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

between 2008 and 2012 by an average of 5.2 percent below

the 1990 level. 

This means an 8 percent reduction in the European Union. In

order to meet this target, companies that operate plants with

high CO2 emissions have to buy emission rights which are traded

on the national and international markets. In the Netherlands,

the OCAP (Organic Carbon Dioxide for Assimilation of Plants)

project has shown that both the environment and the economy

can profit from emission trading and the use of CO2.
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Maas river through the heat exchanger and then pump it back

into the river. The high-efficiency submersible motor pumps

are cast and made of high-quality materials. They have duplex

shaft ends and a special CERAM C0 ceramic coating plus a

separation chamber with a double seal. These pumps are built

for reliable operation in brackish water. They are not affected

by corrosion or hydro-abrasive wear and tear. 750 cubic

metres of cooling water is pumped out of the Maas to a 25

metre discharge head every hour.

In the second step, four single-stage, normal priming, glanded

type VeroNorm NP pumps with a delivery rate of 340 cubic

metres per hour provide closed circuit cooling between the

heat exchanger and compressor. These pumps, which are

designed for cold and hot water applications in a temperature

range of -20° C to +140° C, are also low maintenance, highly

efficient and have low operating costs.

Greenhouse gas is used to promote plant growth, because

when there is adequate light and water, carbon dioxide level

is the main growth factor. For example, if the CO2 concentra-

tion is doubled, the greenhouse yields are around 40 percent

higher than they would be without CO2 fertilisation. In the

final stage, up to 1,400 customers will be supplied with CO2.

170,000 tons of the greenhouse gas will then be pumped

through the pipeline every year. That corresponds to a saving

of 95 million square metres of natural gas, which would

otherwise have been burned in the market gardens' furnaces

to fertilise the plants. The carbon dioxide emissions from the

Shell refinery are also more or less pure, while the exhaust

gases produced by the market gardens' furnaces contain

traces of natural gas and nitric oxide that some plants are very

sensitive to.

Reliable compressor cooling. 

WILO submersible motor pumps and glanded pumps were

used to cool the four big compressors that compress the CO2

in the system and transport it via the pipeline and distribution

stations to the consumers. Three efficient and resistant FA

pumps transport the necessary cooling water from the Oude 
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International employees and
organisation      structures.
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Together we are strong.

International division of labour.

WILO is following these developments with great interest. It

is focusing on minimising the ensuing risks and taking advan-

tage of the associated opportunities. Founded as a family

business in 1872, WILO is equally committed to maintaining

and developing its European sites and to strategic interna-

tional expansion, which involves the development and culti-

vation of new growth markets by establishing own sales

subsidiaries and production facilities. 

It is not the WILO Group's intention to gradually relocate our

production facilities to low wage countries, but to achieve an

international division of labour that enables us to optimise

our quality, productivity and costs. Traditional ownership

mentality would be the wrong strategy to pursue. We have

to assume joint responsibility for safeguarding our company's

sustainability.

This was impressively demonstrated by our establishment of

a production facility to manufacture electronics components

in Dortmund in 2002. It has provided us with outstanding

competence that stands up to any international comparison.

The WILO Group is one of the few manufacturers in the entire

industrial sector to supply electronic components to its

Asian production facilities from Germany. This fact also

documents the WILO Group's corporate philosophy, because

throughout our 134-year history, we have always viewed

the assumption of responsibility for employees as one of our

central responsibilities.

The challenges associated with globalisation.

Identification, motivation, responsibility and personal initiative

are typical characteristics of the people who work at WILO,

and they are the traits that WILO hopes to find in future

employees. These traits cannot be produced on command.

They are fostered by role models and promoted in an appro-

priate organisation with clear structures by managers who

have the ability to motivate their staff.

Progressive globalisation has given rise to new challenges for

German enterprises and their employees. It is a process that

is associated with both risks and opportunities. The crux of

the matter is that they have to improve their competitiveness

in the German market. The world economy is currently in a

process of profound and permanent change. China and India

are two examples of countries that have experienced astro-

nomical economic growth. 

They are consistently taking advantage of their low labour

costs to expand into the markets of the world's leading

industrial nations. This change is taking place at a breath-

taking pace and there are many indicators that countries such

as China and India will profit most from globalisation.

Although, only a few years ago, the majority of manufacturers

produced simple, mass-manufactured articles, there has now

been a shift to more complex products that require special

technology and extensive know-how. 

China has systematically opened its market over a period of

only a few years to become the economic nation with the

largest currency reserves in the world in 2006. And this

strength is enabling developing countries to operate in global

markets and assume entirely new roles in the world economy

through international take-overs and company start-ups.
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The future improvements are already defined and another

employee survey is scheduled for November 2007, by which

time we will have implemented as many of the improvement

measures as possible.

The WILO Group's continuous growth resulted in the further

expansion of the workforce in the year under review. At the

end of 2006, WILO had 5,619 employees worldwide, which

corresponds to an increase of 634 (12.72%) since 2005.

Investments in basic and advanced training.

Lifelong learning is an intrinsic aspect of the WILO Group's

philosophy, so it accords high significance to basic and advanced

training. In September 2006, 313 young people around the

world were in vocational training for various occupations at

WILO. In Germany WILO provides vocational training in several

recognised occupations.

Dialogue with employees.

The results of an employee survey conducted at the end of

2005 were submitted to the managing board in January

2006. They show precisely how we ensure that this respon-

sibility is met in the company's day-to-day operations. The

questionnaire contained almost 100 questions to ascertain

what WILO employees think about their work and their

employer. 60% of the global workforce - over 2,300 people -

took part in the survey and it was evaluated at an institute

of Mannheim University. 

The survey revealed that WILO's employees have a very high

level of affinity with the company and their work. WILO's

strong customer focus and corporate social responsibility

received a lot of praise. High identification and motivation was

also confirmed by the long average length of service of many

employees. For example, 42% of all employees in Dortmund

have been with the company for over ten years now. These

findings reflect a corporate culture that is widely accepted.

This dialogue is being continued and the WILO Group has

already implemented well over 100 improvement workshops

attended by more than 1,000 people to identify and analyse

potential for improvement from the employees' perspectives,

and to utilise this potential by implementing specific measures.

Requests, suggestions and also criticisms are discussed at

the workshops. Almost one in five participants have also

been involved in developing the concepts for the improvement

measures. 

The managers share responsibility for the implementation of

the measures with their staff and a database has been set

up in the intranet containing all measures that have been

approved for implementation. Users can monitor implemen-

tation status with the assistance of a "status indicator" that

functions according to the traffic lights principle. 
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Milestones for a secure future.

A company agreement on the subject of return-to-work

interviews for employees who have been on sick leave has

been concluded in Dortmund, and it has proved to be very

successful. The sickness rate has now declined markedly. The

negotiations with the works council were based on mutual

trust and cooperativeness, despite the occasional difference

of opinion. This is further clear evidence of both sides taking

responsibility for the constructive solution of complex problems.

WILO's willingness to assume social responsibility received a

very positive assessment in the employee survey. One note-

worthy initiative in this respect was launched in 2006 by

Dr. Jochen Opländer, the company founder's grandson, and

his sons Jan and Felix. They launched the WILO Foundation

with starting capital of EUR 1.8 mill. to provide career assis-

tance to talented young individuals. It will particularly help

young people who are especially gifted but lack the funds for

a first-rate education. The foundation's patrons hope that

this non-profit initiative will make a contribution to under-

standing between nations.

For Germany a wide range of education measures were again

provided for employees in the year under review to foster a

culture of learning. The seminar catalogue is being continu-

ously enlarged and a list of available seminars is provided on

the intranet. In 2006, product training courses and seminars

were implemented on subjects such as employment law,

product liability, presentation skills, EDP, English, time and

project management. A special presentation skills improvement

training course was developed and implemented for the

central Research & Development department.

International seminars also took place on the subject of

designing innovation and creativity workshops. Intercultural

training measures with the focus on France and India were

also implemented. Additional training measures in response

to specific requirements are approved by a senior manager

within the framework of the personnel development process. 

There are no 'off the peg' training measures at WILO. We

develop customised concepts that satisfy or are adapted to

the requirements of individual employees.

The average time that each employee spent attending training

measures increased from 2.3 days in 2005 to 2.7 days in 2006.

Around 3.5% of the French subsidiary POMPES SALMSON's

annual payroll was invested in training and education mea-

sures. Each employee attended seminars on subjects such as

technology, management, communication, versatility and

foreign languages for an average of 15 hours during the year.

Versatility and flexibility improvements were achieved at the

French production facilities in special behaviour and commu-

nication workshops that familiarised the workforce with

technological and organisational changes. These workshops

also provided the employees with a better understanding of

the WILO Group's values. They were flanked by an extended

job rotation programme for technicians and engineers within

the French companies. POMPES SALMSON's training pro-

gramme is rounded off with many additional seminars and

workshops on all aspects of safety at work.

Several training modules for international managers in 2006

communicated our business strategy, corporate guidance

and communication principles to the general managers of

the foreign subsidiaries. 



A global network of
heating, refrigeration and      air-conditioning know-how.

High-efficiency technology for Swedish heating pump systems:
"Innovation management increases the success rate of new products".
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Shaping a successful future with international engineering competence.

Interdisciplinary teamwork in all phases of the development

process and input from all the relevant departments enabled

us to eliminate the loops that are generally automatically

created in a sequential process. "As a result, we were able to

develop the Stratos in a relatively short time," said Dr. Krasmann.

This innovative product with advanced technology has put

WILO at the forefront of the world market for high-efficiency

pumps. The Stratos can move a range of liquids at tempera-

tures of between –10°C and +110°C, which makes it suitable

for all classic applications within and outside the building

technology sector.

OEM version for energy-efficient appliances. 

Our Swedish subsidiary made a vital contribution to the devel-

opment of the Stratos PARA OEM version of our high-effi-

ciency pump. For decades now, Sweden has been a traditional

location for heating pump manufacturers and it is also home

base to the world market leaders. These OEMs already had

WILO products in their standard ranges, so it was a logical

choice to market our energy-saving pump technology there

when it reached market maturity. 

Not only does WILO promote interdisciplinary cooperation

between its divisions in all phases of the product development

process in order that it can produce innovations such as its

'quantum-leap-like' high-efficiency technology, it also fosters

cooperation between the international group companies. For

example, a demonstration of the WILO Stratos high-efficiency

pump concept was given to representative foreign compa-

nies at an early stage of the development process. Their

input was then channelled into the next phases of simul-

taneous engineering and marketing concept development.

The Stratos has innovative motor technology. It incorporates

a permanent magnet rotor that more than doubles the

pump's efficiency in conjunction with optimised hydraulics

and electronics. This enables up to 80% energy savings

compared with conventional unregulated pumps and satisfies

the essential requirements for energy efficiency class A.

Improving customer benefits.

"A combination of innovation management and a motivated

and focused interdisciplinary project team has enabled us to

reduce times to market and improve the success rate of new

products," explained Dr. Holger Krasmann, General Manager

of the Big Circulators Business Unit. Customer benefits and

product quality can also be improved by the consistent defi-

nition of objectives, the utilisation of all professional resources

and the involvement of all departments that contribute to

the process. This was very evident in the Stratos development

process. "We wanted to create the perfect product for our

customers, so instead of taking the easy route, we made sure

that the Stratos was also suitable for cold water applications.

This meant that it could be used in heating systems and in

air-conditioning/refrigeration and drinking water circulation

systems, as well as in solar thermal systems." 
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Energy awareness is even becoming more widespread in the

USA, which means that the market for high-efficiency tech-

nology is growing too. In an extremely complex procedure,

similar to the process of developing a new product, the

Stratos was UL-certified in 2006 and it now meets the basic

requirements to be marketed in the USA. This process involved

the UL listing of all materials that are used in the product. 

It was a worthwhile process, since the pump was licensed

in January 2007, making WILO the first company to launch

high-efficiency pumps in the US market, where it is now the

technology leader. The associated secondary effects for the

brand and positioning are far more important in the initial

phase than unit sales targets. 

Much market interest has already been expressed for the

PARA OEM version in the US market. Initial talks have already

taken place with American heating pump manufacturers.

Success through innovation management.

The Stratos PARA has been manufactured in relatively large

numbers since it was launched in 2006, it has been supplied

to Sweden and to customers in Finland and Germany, and is

now already in use in heating pump systems. The fast time

to market and outstanding success of this product are attri-

butable to WILO's interdisciplinary and transnational team

work during all phases of the development process. The

WILO Group has successfully consolidated its technological

leadership and it will continue to build its reputation in the

international markets.

Leif Lindberg, General Manager of WILO Sverige AB in Växjö,

determined the relevant target groups and, in conjunction

with the German project team, he defined the strategic

benefit, the product features and the desired positioning.

"We then visited potential customers and gave them a

demonstration of the technology and benefits of the heating

pump," said Leif Lindberg. The visits also enabled WILO to

identify and define special technical requirements which were

subsequently incorporated in the Stratos PARA OEM version.

The heating pump manufacturers didn't want the full range

of functions that the standard pump has. They preferred a

product that is tailored to their specific application, but with

all the features of the Stratos pump - especially the energy-

saving capability.

"The involvement of the manufacturers in Sweden was very

effective," explained Dr. Holger Krasmann. "We are now

very well positioned with all leading Swedish heating pump

manufacturers." This has also had a knock-on effect in

other countries, such as Germany, where key customers are

now convinced of this product's advantages.

The energy-saving effect opens up markets. 

In France, where electronically-regulated pumps haven't been

all that successful in the past, a high-efficiency pump called

Siriux that is marketed by our POMPES SALMSON subsidiary

has gained in popularity due to the sustained energy conser-

vation trend and the greater affinity to higher-quality products.



A global network of
municipal application      know-how.

Sewage treatment technology for environmentally-aware US municipalities:
"Substantial cost savings throughout the entire lifecycle."
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Transatlantic teams guarantee success in the United States.

opens the separating flaps and forces the solids into the out-

pipe. This reduces the incidence of pump breakdowns and

blockages to almost zero. "Planners and operators who have

seen a demonstration of EMU Port think it's fantastic because

it means considerable cost reductions over the system's

entire useful life."  

CERAM coatings for trouble-free operation.

The use of performance-optimised materials and coatings

also ensures long trouble-free and low-maintenance life-

times. The high mechanical and chemical loads that are

associated with sewage media often necessitate the use of

special wear-resistant materials in place of conventional

cast materials.  

These special materials deliver longer resistance to aggressive

chemical media and abrasive media. They enable larger

maintenance intervals, high efficiency and low energy costs.

"We also use our recently-developed CERAM technology on

an application-specific basis," emphasised Carsten Krumm.

The interior and exterior surfaces of pump components that

come into contact with the media are given a solvent-free

ceramic coating that has aluminium oxide in the polymers for

high abrasion and chemical resistance. These coatings are a

less expensive alternative to special materials. "As a result,

CERAM-coated grey cast iron pumps can be used for appli-

cations where it would normally be necessary to use stain-

less steel".

Close customer relations in the significant and advice-inten-

sive market segment of sewage treatment technology

depend on the efficient cooperation of project teams working

at different geographical locations and in different time zones.

The WILO Group has pooled its sewage treatment, borehole,

sewage and mixer pump competences at Hof. Technical sales

support is also provided by the experts at Hof to the various

regions around the world. For example, key accounts in the

offshore industry receive direct support, though the customer

service teams and with the relevant sales subsidiaries. The

specialists at Hof also channel their application know-how

into the development and planning of water supply and

drainage systems, pumping stations and sewage treatment

plants, and they are a source of central support to large sec-

tions of the municipal markets.

The personnel at the subsidiaries also receive special training

in order that they are aware of the individual requirements

that municipal customers have. In 2006 alone, over 100 WILO

Group employees participated in these international workshops.

Innovative sewage treatment technologies.

Carsten Krumm, Managing Director of WILO EMU and General

Manager of the Submersible Technology (SubTec) Business

Unit, explained that complete solutions for sewage pumping

stations are also possible. This would necessitate the use of

innovative technologies to satisfy the higher requirements

of system and pump efficiency and reliability. "For example,

our EMU Port solids separation system prevents operational

interruptions as a result of blockages caused by braided pile

material in the sewage." This system has a solids separation

reservoir through which  the incoming sewage flows en route

to a collection reservoir, ensuring that the solids in the

sewage do not come into contact with the pump. Then, the

pre-treated sewage is pumped out of the collection reservoir

through the solids separation reservoir. The volume flow
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He and his specialists are in permanent contact with Hof.

Whenever communication needs go beyond video conferen-

cing capabilities, engineers from Germany travel to the USA

to talk to colleagues and customers there. US engineers and

planners also travel to Germany when they are working on

highly technical projects. 

Hof has a permanent team of specialists providing exclusive

support to the US subsidiary. This ensures that the head-

quarters is always aware of the current status of all major

projects in the USA and can provide customer support assi-

stance in all project phases.

Vast market potential in the USA.

Growing environmental awareness in the USA has triggered

high demand for new sewage treatment systems. Some

operators are still using pumps that were built in the 1930s.

WILO-EMU USA LLC in Thomasville/Georgia is an independent,

powerful organisation that was formed two years ago from

USFilter, a company that we acquired from Siemens.

The 15-man sales team, headed by Terry Rouse, has been

working with WILO EMU products for over 25 years now and

it has an excellent customer base. US sales doubled in the

year after the foundation of the new subsidiary. Construction

of a production facility with state-of-the-art test rigs com-

menced in Thomasville in 2006.

It is scheduled to commence operations in 2007. When it is

finished, we intend to sustain the intensive know-how

transfer between Hof and Thomasville. "We want to build our

know-how, especially relating to pressure surge calculations

and oscillation patterns," explained Terry Rouse, President

and CEO of WILO-EMU USA LLC. 



A global network of
commercial and industrial      application know-how.

Pump solutions for the safe and energy-saving operation of Indian boilers:
"Low NPSH value and high temperature resistance were decisive."
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Developing strengths and integrating corporate structures.

The French technical, sales and purchasing managers have

received special training so that they are familiar with the

Indian mentality and culture. Regular meetings are attended

by the Indian and French teams to foster mutual understand-

ing. In 2006, we additionally set up "High Flow Committees"

which meet every three months. Pierre-Yves Bailly is in regular

contact with R. P. Bhatia, the Indian Managing Director of

Mather & Platt in Pune. They discuss issues such as the

selection of  products for specific markets, exchange sales

information and coordinate future projects.  

Claude Ollivier, a French engineer, is the liaison officer in

India for reciprocal know-how transfer. Pankaj Kuvhare of

Mather & Platt is Ollivier's counterpart in Europe. "It's the

ideal way to learn from one another and, as a result, each

partner gains a better understanding of the other partner's

products," he emphasised.

The acquisition of the traditional Indian pump manufacturer,

Mather & Platt, has enabled the WILO Group to extend its

portfolio to include pumps in the upper power range for power

stations, municipal water supply and waste water treatment,

the chemical, petrochemical and agricultural industries. It

also provided us with full access to what is by far the largest

market on the Indian subcontinent. 

To be successful in this very promising region, which has a

growth outlook similar to China, we will have to focus on

integrated cooperation between our companies in Europe

and India. The business relationships that our French subsi-

diary Salmson has been cultivating with India for many years

can now be conducted in a new framework.

Personal contacts are the key.

"Everything's possible in India if you communicate effectively,"

said Pierre-Yves Bailly, General Manager of the Water Tech-

nology Business Unit, which is responsible for the design and

development of the pumps that are manufactured in India

and marketed around the world. 

Personal contact – including contact with customers – is

extremely important. "Since English is widely spoken on the

Indian subcontinent, communication is greatly facilitated. On

a technical level, pump manufacturers all speak the same

language anyway."  
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"The customer opted for Salmson's MVI pumps because of

their very low NPSH value and high temperature resistance,"

said the General Manager of the Water Technology Business

Unit. Other factors that swayed the decision in our favour

were the pumps' optimum quality, durability, reliability and

low operating costs as a result of the use of standard com-

ponents as the IEC standard motors. 

All boilers are manufactured in accordance with the ISO 9001

quality standard and they are mainly supplied to customers

in India, Africa, the Gulf region and Asia for applications in

textile, paper, energy, chemical and food manufacturing pro-

cesses. Safety is obviously a very important consideration

for boiler manufacturers and Forbes Marshall emphasises

that it only uses the most competent suppliers for individual

components.

Positive development.

The location of our Mather & Platt subsidiary close to Forbes

Marshall in Pune and the WILO Group's efficient international

cooperation structures enable us to provide our customers

with excellent technical and after-sales support. It is also the

reason why Salmson's responsibilities were gradually trans-

ferred to Mather & Platt in 2006. The Indian subsidiary's core

lines of business in the market for big circulators and systems

have also been given a boost by the company's incorporation

in our powerful international group.  This is clearly evident

by the positive development of sales figures.

Multistage pumps for the Indian market.

In 2006, the foundation stone was laid for a production facility

in Kholapur where multistage centrifugal pumps will be

assembled. The new production facility will transfer value

creation to our Indian subsidiary. These MVI vertical inline

pumps are manufactured at Salmson in Laval. From 2007

onwards, they will be assembled in accordance with Asian

market requirements at the new Indian production facility.

Increasing demand for this type of pump is one of the reasons

why the investment was made and the product portfolio has

now been extended to include pumps that can deliver 100

cubic metres per hour at 12 bar pressure. 

Vertical multistage pumps are now increasingly being used

for all kinds of building technology and industrial applications

because of their unique mechanical features, their excellent

hydraulic performance and their modular design. They satisfy

the precise technical specifications for cooling water, water

supply, pressure booster and water recycling systems, for 

fire protection systems and for washing plants and irrigation

systems. These pumps are perfect for industrial process

applications as a result of having integrated variable speed

control. The MVI's design and robustness make it ideal for

critical applications such as boiler feeding.

Supplier to a leading boiler manufacturer.

"An existing contract for the supply of MVI boiler feed pumps

to Forbes Marshall, a leading Indian boiler manufacturer, was

a key consideration in our decision to build the new assem-

bly plant in India," said Pierre-Yves Bailly. Two Salmson Multi

V vertical high-pressure multistage centrifugal pumps are

integrated in the internationally-reputed steam engineering

specialist's compact boiler. They are used for the energy-

economical return of collected condensate into the feed

water cycle. 
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Internationally-reputed
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Improved customer benefits through quality and innovation.

Research and development.

WILO is renowned all over the world for its trend-setting

innovations. Two of the innovative projects in the field of

submersible pumps during 2006 were the development of

new 10 and 12-inch submersible motor aggregates for use in

clean water and thermo-dynamically optimised type FKT 27

self-cooling motors. A 16-inch solution and correspondingly

dimensioned pumps for sewage treatment applications will

also be available in the near future. The Crono and Vero elec-

tronic circulator ranges have been further expanded. The range

of big wet-rotor circulators for the North American market

was rounded off with the new Top-S circulator. This pump

has pre-selectable rotational speeds for manual performance

control and it is UL and CSA-certified. WILO has launched

the Stratos PARA, a high-efficiency pump for the OEM market

that was also UL-certified in 2006. The OEMs integrated it in

industrial heating and cooling systems. The pump received the

iF Product Design Award 2006 for its innovative product con-

cept and completely innovative arrangement of components.

In the area of the small circulators, which are also used for

OEM applications, WILO has joined forces with the MTS and

Bitron to collaborate in the "Galileo" development project. 

A new sales concept addressing OEM customers has been

elaborated to market the Stratos in North America. 

In the field of electronics, WILO has developed both an alarm

modem and the DigiCon interface module. The module is

equipped with a digital and analogue interface converter to

ensure that all WILO's electronic pumps can be integrated in

standard building management systems. The electronic pumps

are able to communicate via telephone, GPRS, modem and

Ethernet. EC-Drain is an innovative new development that

provides the Group with a new generation of switching devices

with economy control for the expanding drainage market in

its product portfolio. New switching devices with enhanced

functionality for pressure booster pumps have been developed

at the Electronics Competence Centre in Dortmund. They

incorporate modular features for different building manage-

ment systems which enable their incorporation in pumps all

over the world.

In the financial year 2006, the WILO Group again demonstrated

its innovative strength. New products have been developed

and existing ranges improved, especially in the area of high-

efficiency pumps. The voluntary introduction of energy

labels for wet rotor heating pumps has further consolidated

the success of the WILO Stratos high-efficiency pump, which

satisfies the requirements for energy efficiency rating A.

Growth of OEM business has also remained stable. In order to

keep up with the marked increase in the production volumes

of almost all product ranges, the Group has invested EUR

14.5 mill. in its production facilities and it has also expanded

its production capacity. 

Significant investments in these areas were made for inline

and block pump production in Dortmund and Oschersleben.

The standardisation of components and the simplification

of product lines have also reduced the complexity of product

ranges to a manageable level. 

The extreme developments in raw material and component

prices have been partially compensated by measures to increase

efficiency and production output. WILO has implemented

rationalisation measures at its European production facilities

to reduce costs and optimise product specialisation and 

marketability. For instance, the production of pressure booster

systems and borehole pumps was relocated from Laval in

France to the Oschersleben and Hof production facilities in

Germany and all Vero production operations have also been

relocated from Dortmund to Oschersleben. 

WILO ELEC commenced operations in 2006. It is the Group's

tenth production facility. The new plant in the Chinese

province of Quinhuangdao manufactures dry-rotor pump

motors that deliver up to 4 KW of power. The integration of

the Indian company, Mather & Platt, in the Group has simplified

WILO's product distribution activities in the Indian market.

Mather & Platt products are also exported via the WILO sub-

sidiaries. Finally, a research & development unit with five

engineers has been established in India. WILO's acquisition of

the UK pump manufacturer Circulating Pumps Ltd. provides it

with a production location in the United Kingdom and has

strengthened the Group's position in the market for heating/

potable hot water circulation systems. WILO Intec received a

quality award from the French Ministry for Industry, Economics

and Finance. The award was introduced in 1992 and it pays

tribute to enterprises that demonstrate special commitment

to quality.  
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The dry rotor pumps were fitted with an application-oriented

control unit with digital signal processors for improved effi-

ciency and dynamism. Further benchmarks in this segment

were set by the pumps in the Crono range, whose hydraulics

are designed for maximum efficiency as a result of a precise

setting between the impeller and the pump housing which

minimises flow loss. The electronically-regulated Cronoline

and Cronotwin pumps deliver additional energy savings.

Their integrated frequency converter enables the adjustment

of rotational speed to the flow requirements of the specific

application. Energy savings of up to 50% compared with

unregulated pumps can be achieved as a result. 

A patent was filed in respect of the new electronic motor

technology in 2006. The 300 – 360 kW self-cooling motor

is the best performer in its class. 

WILO pumps again received awards for quality and design.

The Stratos ECO and the drinking water circulation pump

WILO Star-Z 15 TT received the Red Dot Award 2006. The

assessment criteria included functionality, ergonomics, formal

quality and ecological compatibility. 

A new approach for heating systems – the decentralised pump

system – has successfully completed its first field trial. Over

the next couple of years, this innovative system will be

tested in a variety of residential and non-residential buildings. 

Technology highlights.

As the technology leader in the high-efficiency pump seg-

ment, WILO has further optimised the successful Stratos

range. Stratos PARA, a pump with innovative EC motor tech-

nology that is designed for use in OEM applications for water

circulation in heating and cooling systems, is now available.

This product can also be integrated in heating pumps, which

makes it suitable for new applications and opens up new

customer segments. The Stratos ECO range for building

management systems has been expanded in line with require-

ments: the new Stratos ECO-BMS can be controlled and

adjusted via the building management system. It can also

send collective alerts and larger pumps for air conditioning

applications have also been added to the range.  

In the area of commercial and industrial applications, sales

of ATEX pump systems to industrial customers increased.

WILO's big FA 30.78 sewage treatment pumps made from

special materials enabled it to secure a project in Salzgitter

despite tough competition. In the normal priming, multi-stage

Multivert pump segment, the delivery capacity of the MVI 95

has been increased to 140 m3/hour. The second generation of

MVISE was not only fitted with the latest electronic controls,

it was also given a low noise motor that is up to 20 dB (A)

quieter than any other pump in the market. 
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A production facility was also established in India during 2006.

All of the pumps manufactured there are destined for the

respective regional markets. 

The production capacities for pressure booster systems have

been pooled at one single location and the necessary com-

ponents have been standardised. All the WILO PBUs and

production facilities around the world work according to the

principle of Total Quality Management with harmonised

goals and assessment criteria. International conferences and

workshops are held to define targets and measures, plan and

start up projects and discuss their status.

Investments in production and R&D.

The WILO Group invested a total of EUR 22 mill. in production

equipment and the development of new products in 2006.

The lion's share was invested in the establishment of the

Chinese plant, WILO ELEC. Two painting/coating machines

were installed at Hof, Germany. All production processes

have been adapted to meet the requirements of the European

RoHS directive with regard to lead-free soldering, SMD ovens

and microwave soldering. The capacity of the Stator winding

machines has been increased by 15 percent to 1 million

units. Investing in its own x-ray spectrometer makes the

Group less dependent on suppliers and service providers. 

WILO erected an ultra-modern sound-proof cabin at its

Research and Technology Centre in Dortmund. This enables

researchers and development engineers to optimise the

operating noise of the pumps. The Group invested approxi-

mately EUR 1.2 mill. in the development of new large products

in 2006 alone.

Production process optimisation.

In the year under review, the Group introduced the interna-

tional WILO Production System (WPS) for continuous improve-

ment, lean management and quality-oriented thinking. The

system is based on the five cornerstones of “Standardisation”,

“Elimination of Unnecessary Work Processes”, “Improvement

of Workplace Organisation”, “Continuous Improvement” and

“Key Performance Indicators”. According to these principles,

the sensible use of materials, efficient product and process

development, effective departmental and human resource

scheduling and a zero defect philosophy will to lead to excel-

lence, customer satisfaction, a competitive advantage, more

growth, the achievement of target costs and the maximisation

of profits.

In 2006, production processes at the European sites were

adapted to meet the requirements of the European Union's

RoHS directive. According to this directive, electrical and

electronic appliances must not exceed the maximum limits

of hazardous substances such as cadmium, mercury, chrome,

bi- and diphenyl. In order to broaden our expertise in key

areas, we initiated expert networks for stainless steel and

laser welding. The WILO Group also entered into a strategic

cooperation with OEM boiler manufacturers. 

Cronoline and Veroline cold and hot water pumps are manu-

factured at the production facilities in China, Korea and

North America for the Asian and American markets. Korea is

also responsible for the planning and implementation of

sewage treatment projects in  the Chinese and Indian markets.

This production facility also manufactures submersible pumps,

providing the WILO Group with a second production plat-

form. There are multi-stage pump assembly lines based on

the French production model in Laval in Korea and China.
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This Total Quality Management philosophy, which is practiced

in all areas of the company, again helped us to improve opera-

tional reliability and significantly reduce warranty costs in 2006.

Commitment to sustainability.  

Environmental protection is extremely significant for the

WILO Group. On one hand, its products primarily handle water,

which is the earth's most precious and preservation-worthy

element. On the other, WILO pumps make a valuable contri-

bution to sustainability throughout their entire lifecycle

because they optimise energy consumption. We also operate

efficient and environmentally-friendly production plants.

The individual standards, measures, activities, investments

and progress in the area of sustainability are detailed in the

WILO Sustainability Report, which is published annually. 

Examples of the above include the adaptation of our produc-

tion lines so that we can already manufacture RoHS-con-

forming pumps and components today, a reduction in the

number of our microwave soldering stations, the introduction

of reusable packaging for internal transportation and the

energy-saving roof redevelopment project in Hof. All measures

in the area of research and development, production, quality

and sustainability which are implemented at all the Group's

sites around the world ultimately enable us to achieve our

objective of total customer satisfaction. WILO will continue

driving progress, despite all its achievements, by pooling all

of its strengths and striving to be better. 

Quality is the primary aim.  

Intensive quality management at all levels has resulted in the

continuous improvement of the WILO Group's products and

services. We always focus on the needs and requirements of

customers when it comes to quality. Special quality teams

are exclusively assigned to quality improvement. They com-

pile status reports and provide support to users of quality

improvement systems such as FMEA and WPS. 

All sites in Germany and the sales subsidiaries in Germany,

the Netherlands and Norway are quality-certified on the basis

of a general process plan. This matrix certification eliminates

the need for quality checks further down in the organisational

hierarchy. Uniform standards and uniform requirements

with fewer audits and adjustments reduce costs. On the other

hand, WILO also uses national certification organisations in 

order to achieve the highest possible level of market accep-

tance. The full disclosure of quality data and information in

the isochronal reports and similar reporting tools improves

transparency. Product defects are documented in relation to

date and breakdown time. Factors of influence and causes

are then identified in product quality analyses. 

Quality assurance at WILO is supported by several pillars:

1. A thorough analysis of customer complaints

2. A zero defect strategy

3. 100% control with additional logistics audits

4. Integrated application of the Kaizen philosophy 

5. Continuous improvement processes

6. Certification according to VDA 6.4, QS 9000 and ISO 9001



The world's first high-efficiency      pump family for heating, 
refrigeration and air-conditioning      applications. WILO Stratos.

New Stratos high-efficiency pumps for an even wider range of applications.
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Greater energy savings in industry, business and homes.

The Stratos PARA received the "iF Product Design Award 2006"

for its innovative product concept. The jury mentioned that

the innovative arrangement of components was one of the

considerations in its decision. All relevant built-in and operat-

ing elements are easily accessible because they are facing

the user. The famous WILO 'red knob' for pump setting adjust-

ment and the simple electrical connection, even in complex

installation scenarios, were also commended by the jury.

The award-winning pump's design reflects the design guide-

line developed for WILO pumps by the Berlin design agency,

Mehnert Corporate Design GmbH & Co. KG, which gives all

the products a distinctive and unmistakable corporate identity.

The Stratos had already received the coveted design award

in 2003.

An increasing number of home owners are taking advantage

of the potential energy savings associated with the new genera-

tion of Stratos high-efficiency pumps. This WILO technology

is even popular with heating and refrigeration system OEMs,

enabling up to 80% energy savings when compared with

conventional pumps.

WILO responded early on to the trend of using regenerative

energies by developing appropriate products for these appli-

cations.

Stratos PARA for heating pumps and other systems.

WILO developed the Stratos PARA for use in OEM systems.

The model's technical concept is based on the energy-saving

Stratos. It is predominantly used by OEMs for mass-manu-

factured heating and refrigeration systems, and it is the very

first OEM high-efficiency pump. The Stratos PARA has a

compact design for easy integration in the system's control

technology. This, and the pump's simple connection tech-

nology, enable its adaptation to any installation scenario.
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Stratos ECO for building management systems.

Building management systems are now increasingly being

used in detached homes and blocks of flats. They enable the

more precise, economical and convenient regulation of heating

and hot water circulation. In response to this development,

WILO has extended its Stratos ECO high-efficiency pump

range to satisfy the new requirements. The new version of

the Stratos ECO-BMS can be remote controlled via various

BMS bus systems, interfaces and protocols. In addition to the

basic version's integrated power controller for variable differ-

ential pressure, this version has a controller for constant

differential pressure. It can also send collective alerts. The

Stratos ECO-BMS can be switched on and off externally and

operated by the 'red knob'. As a result, important settings

such as the flexible regulation of the pump's rotational speed

can be made on the pump itself or via a remote signal.

The new high-efficiency pump for building management

systems is available in the versions of ECO-BMS for all heating

applications and ECO-Z-BMS for potable water circulation

systems. Similar to the existing Stratos and Stratos ECO

models, the new models satisfy the essential requirements

for energy efficiency class A. All pumps start up reliably and

operate conveniently as a result of the innovative ECM motor's

starting torque which is considerably higher. Operational

reliability is guaranteed by a filter disc in front of the cartridge

and integrated anti-blocking software.

Stratos ECO-ST for thermal solar installations.

WILO has now added a high-efficiency pump for thermal solar

systems to its product portfolio. The Stratos ECO-ST was

specifically designed for solar process water heating and for

heating support applications in detached homes, semi-

detached homes and blocks of flats with up to six units. Until

now, conventional heating pumps have been used in solar

thermal installations. Their power profiles are, however, not

optimised for this application and as a result they consume

too much power. This is obviously an undesirable effect con-

sidering that one of the reasons for installing solar thermal

systems is their positive ecological and economic impact.

The ST (solar thermal) version of the Stratos ECO has an 

0-10 V interface, which enables the complete integration of

the pump in the system control unit. The pump is regulated

by the solar controller on the basis of the temperature differ-

ence between the collector and the tank. Not only can

savings be achieved with the innovative EC motor technology,

the pump also reduces costs as a result of its exceedingly

low power consumption of only 5.8 watt. Standard catapho-

resis coating of the cast iron housing prevents corrosion

and extends service life.



The only coating in the world      that delivers 
lifelong corrosion      protection. WILO EMU CERAM.

Solids separation system and CERAM coating for reduced maintenance in municipal water and sewage treatment.
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Greater operational reliability and longer service life.

The pump is switched off during the filling process and the

incoming sewage initially flows into the separation reservoir.

The solids are held back by separating flaps as the sewage,

which is not pre-treated in any other way, flows into the col-

lection reservoir while the pump is switched off. The sewage

level in the collection and solids separation reservoirs rises.

When it reaches a certain level, a ball valve automatically

stops the intake. Then, the pre-treated sewage is pumped

out of the collection reservoir through the solids separation

reservoir. 

The separating flaps are opened by the volume flow and the

sewage forces the filtered solids into the outpipe without

them having come into contact with the pump. The pumping

process also ends when the sewage reaches a certain level.

The ball valve in the solids separation reservoir sinks down to

enable a new filling cycle.

Pumps are used for many different applications in the field of

municipal waste water and sewage treatment. One example

of such an application is pressure drainage in problematic

topographies to guarantee the reliable and economical dis-

posal of waste water into the public sewer or directly to the

sewage treatment plant. WILO has a comprehensive range of

economical pumps for these applications, extending from

powerful submersible motor-driven pumps to entire sewage

treatment plant. Pumps are also often used in tough environ-

ments where they have to be resistant against abrasive

substances.

Greater operational reliability due to a solids separation

system.

Non-water-soluble solids constitute a major risk to the opera-

tional reliability of sewage treatment plant. If these solids

get inside a pump, the hydraulics change and the pump can

get blocked. The result is expensive maintenance work at the

pumping station, and there is also the risk that the reserve

pump will become inoperative for the same reason. Bearing

this in mind, WILO has developed a solids separation system

for sewage pumping stations, which ensures that the pumps

do not come into contact with solids in the sewage. The core

of the system is a solids separation reservoir through which

the incoming sewage flows en route to a collection reservoir.  
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The WILO pumping stations for municipal applications are all

double pumping stations in which the pumps can be used

alternately. Each pump has its own solids separation reservoir.

The incoming sewage initially enters a distribution reservoir

from where it is moved into one of the two solids separation

reservoirs. One of the pumps remains switched off for the

filtering and collection reservoir filling process while the other

one pumps the content of the solids separation reservoir

into the penstock. The switch-over to the other pump takes

place when the collection reservoir is empty.  

Ceram coatings extend service life.

Pumping media are often corrosive or contain abrasive parti-

cles, which means there is a great deal of wear on the pump

housings, impellers and pipes. To increase life expectancy of

the pumps, it is possible to make them out of special highly-

resistant materials. However, this means that some of the

pump systems are considerably more expensive and have

longer delivery times. Another less expensive alternative is

coating with WILO EMU CERAM. This high-quality, solvent-

free two-component polymer and ceramic coating effectively

protects all cast aluminium or cast iron pump components

that come into contact with the pumping medium against

corrosion and abrasion. 
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The CERAM coating is special because it has a high wet

adhesion value of 15 N/mm2 which also guarantees excellent

wear resistance. It can withstand considerable mechanical

attrition and it can even be used to pump sewage containing

sand. This coating is recommended for pumps used in sewage

treatment applications where flocculants are added to the

sewage to eliminate phosphates. CERAM-coated parts have

lower surface roughness, which in the majority of cases

actually improves the pump's hydromechanical efficiency. It

also considerably extends the lifespan of the pump housing

and the impellers and reduces maintenance requirements,

because lower wear means lower costs for maintenance and

repairs. 

As a result, substantial improvements in overall efficiency

can be achieved over the entire lifespan of pumps that are

used in many different sewage treatment applications.



World-level inline technology
efficiency.      WILO Crono.

The innovative Crono and the new Multivert MVI 95 ensure lower operating costs and higher performance for industrial applications.
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Greater efficiency and flexibility.

As a result of their special design, the pumps in this series

can reach peak values of overall efficiency with standardised

EFF II motors. If they are fitted with the optional EFF I motor, 

which is produced at the WILO plant in China, the WILO Crono

pumps can attain markedly higher overall efficiency than

pumps from other manufacturers. Below the line, an efficiency

comparison reveals decisive total cost advantages.

A specially constructed pump valve that is designed to

systematically discharge condensation water and effectively

prevent corrosion provides additional advantages.

The electronically-regulated WILO Cronoline IL E single-

head pump and the WILO Cronotwin DL-E twin-head pump

enable additional energy savings. Both have an integrated

frequency converter for precise regulation. The pump intelli-

gently adjusts its speed to the flow required by the system,

thus permitting energy savings of up to 50 % compared with

unregulated pumps. These two models can also be connected

up to the building management system with a retrofit IF

module that has a communication interface.

These days, the energy consumed by individual components

is a major design consideration when planning industrial

systems for heating, water supply, air-conditioning, refrig-

eration and a whole host of different process-specific appli-

cations. Pump technology components come under special

scrutiny because power consumption minimisation and service

life extension are important factors in any long-term consid-

eration of operating costs.

Optimised hydraulics.

WILO Crono glanded pumps set lifecycle cost standards. The

pumps' hydraulics are designed for maximum efficiency. A

precise setting between the impeller and the pump housing

reduces flow loss to optimise hydrodynamic properties and

improve efficiency levels. The WILO Crono pumps are also

exceedingly quiet, deliver a high level of operational reliability

and reduce the pressure on the bearing and the mechanical seal. 
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The WILO Multivert MVI and the Salmson Multi V series of

identical design include a wide range of multistage vertical

high-pressure centrifugal pumps. The pumps are designed for

water supply and pressure boosting systems, fire extinguishing

and industrial circulation systems, cooling water systems,

boiler feeding and process technology, as well as for washing

plants and irrigation systems. 

All the pumps in the series have standard motors that con-

form to the international IEC industrial standard. This means

greater flexibility if the motor has to be replaced. A standard

thrust bearing in the support stand facilitates the mounting

of standard motors on the pump technology at the customer's

request. The MVI pumps are approved for potable water

systems under the German Association of the Gas and Water

Industry's recommendations on plastics and potable water

(KTW) and the British WRAS standard (Water Regulations

Advisory Scheme). All parts that come into contact with the

medium are corrosion-resistant to guarantee a long service life.

Even more powerful.

The new Multivert MVI 95 extends the range of WILO vertical

high-pressure centrifugal pumps for water supply and pres-

sure boosting. The largest model in the series is designed for

a maximum flow rate of 150 m3/h and a discharge head of

up to 160 metres.

The inline pump incorporates the special technical features

of a cartridge-type mechanical seal and a dismountable

coupling. This extremely low-maintenance solution makes it

possible to replace the mechanical seal without removing

the motor, thereby reducing downtime to the minimum. The

new model's low maintenance and service requirements also

contribute to the efficiency of the system where the pump

is installed.
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recorded sales in 2006 that had risen nominally by 6.5%.

The Central Association of the German Construction Industry

estimates 6.5% growth in residential construction, 9.5%

growth in commercial construction and 2.5% growth in public

facilities construction in 2006. Growth in sales of 1.8% was

achieved in 2006 in the German building technology market,

which includes the sanitary and the HVAC sectors, according

to the Association of the German Sanitary Industry. Foreign

trade contributed significantly to the positive development

in this sector with a rise in sales of 12.5%. 

Business development at WILO.

With an increase in net sales of 16.4% compared with the

previous year we have again stayed on the growth path

during the financial year 2006. 15.2 percentage points are

based on organic growth and 1.2 percentage points on the

pro rata inclusion of figures from new companies acquired

during 2006.

The highest growth rates in net sales were recorded in Eastern

Europe of 27.5% and Asia of 24.2%. However, we still mana-

ged to achieve significant growth in Western Europe and in

the other markets in which our products have a high profile.

With an 8.3% increase in net sales in our most important

single market, Germany, we achieved a satisfactory result.

Net sales here increased from EUR 167.7 mill. in the previous

year to EUR 181.7 mill. in 2006. This means WILO has shown

stronger growth than the market itself. In France we managed

to stand our ground at a time when the sector experienced

economic difficulty, achieving a growth rate of 3.5% up to a

total in net sales of EUR 103.1 mill. 

In Korea, net sales increased by 9.8% to EUR 91.8 mill. in

2006 compared with the previous year; this must in part 

be attributed to the South Korean won having been revalued

in relation to the euro.

We have achieved clear double-digit growth rates in net sales

in all segments. While net sales in the heating and air-condi-

tioning segment increased by 15.4%, the segment water and

sewage was able to achieve an above average growth rate

of 18.0% compared with the net sales development of the

entire WILO Group. 

Results of operations.

The profitable growth of the WILO Group continued through-

out the financial year 2006. EBIT in relation to net sales

improved slightly with 11.7% compared with the previous year. 

On the one hand the gross profit in relation to net sales was

slightly reduced from 40.8% to 39.7%. The pressure on the

gross margin was mainly due to price increases for raw mate-

rials and an above average growth in markets with weaker

margins. On the other hand the administrative costs and sel-

ling expenses increased below average in relation to net sales,

thereby compensating the deterioration of the gross margin. 

Group Structure.

The Group evolved from the copper and brass factory, Louis

Opländer Maschinenbau, which was founded in Dortmund

in 1872. The Parent company is WILO AG, based in Dortmund,

which holds all indirect and direct shares of the Group. Its

subscribed capital amounts to EUR 26.0 mill.  A complete list

of shareholdings is included on page 164. 

During the 2006 financial year we have been able to expand our

position as a leading international producer of pumps and

pump systems. To this end the following significant changes

in the Group structure were, amongst other things, instru-

mental in this success: 

The Aquanox Group, based in South Africa and acquired in the

2005 financial year, was merged with our South African

subsidiary Salmson South Africa Ltd., Johannesburg in order

to generate synergy effects in the administration area and

to improve the sales & distribution structure. 

As part of our expansion plans we have acquired 100.0% of

shares in the British companies Circulating Pumps Ltd.,

based in King’s Lynn, Norfolk, and CCD Pumps Ltd., based in

London. On the one hand these acquisitions serve the pur-

pose of increasing our market share in small heating circula-

tion pumps. On the other hand they serve to expand our

service network in the United Kingdom.

In the 2006 financial year we acquired 50.0% of the shares

of the newly founded, jointly controlled entity,  WILO Middle

East LLC, based in Riyadh, Saudi Arabia in order to strengthen

our market position in the Middle East. 

The integration of businesses acquired in Asia and South

Africa during the 2005 financial year into the worldwide WILO

structures went according to plan.

Economic Environment.

Global economic recovery continued during 2006. According

to the current assessment by members of the Arbeitsgemein-

schaft deutscher wirtschaftswissenschaftlicher Forschungs-

institute e.V., Berlin (Study Group for German Economic

Science Research Institutes), the global economy experienced

actual growth of 3.7% in 2006. This positive development

was primarily the result of continued rapid development of

economies in Asia, Latin America and Eastern Europe. The

Chinese government, for instance, reported growth in Gross

Domestic Product (GDP) of 10.7%. In the euro zone coun-

tries the GDP increased by 3.4% in comparison with the pre-

vious year. 

However, this positive global trend slowed down towards the

end of 2006. The reason for this is the somewhat slower growth

in the USA and Japan that could not be compensated  by the

stronger growth in the euro zone countries and Great Britain.  

In Germany GDP for 2006 increased by 2.5% according to the

figures for January 2007 from the German Federal Statistical

Office. Germany has thus achieved the highest increase since

2000. The most significant growth factor was the strong

export trade, which increased by 12.4% compared with the

previous year. Consumer spending showed – after price

adjustments – an increase of 0.9% for 2006. Gross invest-

ments increased by 6.1% compared with the previous year. 

The industrial sectors important for the WILO Group, i.e.

construction industry and facility engineering, continued

their positive development in Germany again in 2006. After

many years of recession the German construction industry

(EUR mill.) 2006 2005 Changes

Western Europe 497.5 450.5 10.4%

Eastern Europe 182.9 143.4 27.5%

Asia 158.8 127.9 24.2%

Other Regions 34.2 28.6 19.6%

Total 873.4 750.4 16.4%

Regional Development of Net Sales
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Compared with the previous year, the EBIT rose by 16.8% to

EUR 102.1 mill. The earnings per share improved by 14.2%

to EUR 6.12 compared with the previous year.

Significant foreign currency transactions were conducted in

US dollars and South Korean won. While the exchange rate of

the US dollar in relation to the Euro changed only marginally

compared with the previous year, the South Korean won was

revalued by 6.0%, which also contributed to the improve-

ment of the comprehensive income. 

The comprehensive income after taxes increased by 14.0%

to EUR 60.9 mill. compared with the previous year, amoun-

ting to 7.0% (2005: 7.1%) of net sales.

Please refer to section [8.11] in the Notes with regard to the

reconciliation of EBIT to comprehensive income after taxes.

Financial situation. 

The balance sheet total of the WILO Group increased by

21.9% to EUR 622.3 mill. compared with the figure of 

31 December 2005. Non-current assets increased by 13.9%

to EUR 227.7 mill., while current assets increased by 27.1%

to EUR 394.6 mill. 

The increase in non-current assets results primarily from the

increase in the additions to tangible assets by EUR 10.5 mill.

compared with 31 December 2005. The reason for this devel-

opment is a significantly higher investment in manufacturing

plants, in the distribution infrastructure of existing locations

and in the build-up of the new manufacturing site in China.

Furthermore, company acquisitions during the financial year

2006 and investment in the jointly managed company in Saudi

Arabia, also contributed to this rise.

The current trade accounts receivable increased by 10.0% to

EUR 186.3 mill. and therefore clearly below average in relation

to net sales. Inventories increased by 21.2% to EUR 135.0 mill.

This above average change in inventories in comparison with

the net sales development is mainly a result of building up

inventories in the new companies and is due to already

manufactured products destined for delivery at the beginning

of 2007. The overall net working capital of the WILO Group

increased by 14.2% compared with 31 December 2005 and

therefore below average in relation to net sales.

The increase in the remaining current assets is mainly the

result of an increase in cash by EUR 43.2 mill. to EUR 59.3 mill.

compared to 31 December 2005. The reason for this develop-

ment is the issuance of Senior Notes as part of a US private

placement in the amount of EUR 67.5 mill. (USD 80.0 mill.).

By means of this long-term commitment we have strength-

ened the financing of the WILO Group with lasting effect.

This enables us to re-structure the internal financing of the

WILO Group and allows us to safeguard the high financial

requirements for future investments over the coming years

while observing matching maturities. Corresponding with

this, non-current liabilities have increased by EUR 57.4 mill.

compared with 31 December 2005.

With an increase of 15.3% to EUR 265.5 mill., equity developed

positively yet again. The equity ratio reached 42.7% of total

assets (2005: 45.1%). The Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

was at 30.0% (2005: 29.2%*).

*Due to changes in accounting policies in the 2006 financial year the previous
year figures have been adjusted accordingly (see section [7] in the Notes). 

Investments.

Investments in tangible assets increased by 65.8% to EUR 36.8

mill. compared with 2005. The focus was on expansion of

capacities and productivity improvements in manufacturing

as well as investing in premises of sales subsidiaries.

Investments in financial assets and for business acquisitions

amounted to EUR 20.2 mill. during the past financial year. 

Cash flow.

Compared with the previous year, the cash flows from opera-

ting activities declined by 13.2% to EUR 66.6 mill. in the

2006 financial year, while the EBIT improved by 16.8% to

EUR 102.1 mill. The reason for this development is primarily

the building up of inventories – caused mainly by an increased

order balance – adjusted by the amount of EUR 20.5 mill.

through first-time consolidation effects.

The application of financial funds as part of the investment

activities increased in the 2006 financial year by 38.9% to

EUR 50.0 mill. This is primarily the result of an increase in

investment in manufacturing plants to extend capacities and

improve productivity as well as to optimise the distribution

infrastructure. 

2006 2005* Changes

EBIT (EUR mill.) 102.1 87.4 16.8%

EBIT (% of net sales) 11.7% 11.6% 0.9%

Earnings per share (EUR) 6.12 5.36 14.2%

*Due to changes in accounting policies in the 2006 financial year the 
previous year figures have been adjusted accordingly (see section [7] and
[8.12] in the Notes).

Development of earnings

(EUR mill.) 2006 % 2005 %

Non-current assets 227.7 36.6% 200.0 39.2%

Inventories 135.0 21.7% 111.4 21.8%

Trade accounts receivable 186.3 29.9% 169.4 33.2%

Other current assets 73.3 11.8% 29.6 5.8%

Total assets 622.3 100.0% 510.4 100.0%

Assets

(EUR mill.) 2006 % 2005 %

Equity 265.5 42.7% 230.3 45.1%

Non-current liabilities 162.1 26.0% 104.7 20.5%

Trade accounts payable 62.8 10.1% 54.7 10.7%

Other current liabilities 131.9 21.2% 120.7 23.7%

Total liabilities 622.3 100.0% 510.4 100.0%

Liabilities 

(EUR mill.) 2006 2005 Changes

Investments in tangible assets 36.8 22.2 65.8%

Investments in intangible assets 1.2 1.7 -29.4%

Total 38.0 23.9 59.0%

in % of depreciation of tangible  
assets and depreciation/
amortisation of intangible assets 145.0% 95.2%

Capital expenditure 
(not including investments in financial assets and goodwill)
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Employees.

On 31 December, 2006, the WILO Group employed 5,619 staff

worldwide. Compared with the previous year, the number of

employees increased by 12.7%. The Group has thereby

addressed the varying increasing demand in different regions

by expanding its human resources accordingly. On top of

that the increase in overall staff is in part attributable to the

first-time consolidation of entities in the financial year 2006.

Certificates and Licenses.

Quality and environmental certificates in compliance with the

standards and regulations of ISO 9001:2000, VDA 6.4 and

ISO 14001 acquired in previous years are still valid for all prod-

uction facilities and sales subsidiaries of the WILO Group. 

In the 2006 financial year, the range of products with UL

approval in the USA has been expanded substantially.

Risk Report. 

The WILO Group has established a modern, integrated, world-

wide accessible risk management system that allows early

identification of business risks, facilitating timely appropriate

countermeasures. Monitoring the consistent implementation

of such measures forms an essential part of this system. 

Starting with the identification of risks, these will be assessed,

controlled as far as possible and ultimately monitored. Internal

audit has been tightly integrated into this process. 

Fundamentally, the risk management of WILO is based on a

decentralised approach. Supported by the company’s con-

trolling department, the managers are responsible for identi-

fying and reporting risks. Risk assessment and comparability

of proceedings are ensured through the use of checklists

that enable the uniform categorisation of risks, supported

by a suitable software serving as a communication and infor-

mation platform. 

The assessment of identified risks takes into consideration

their probability of occurrence and their potential impact.

Risk management pursues the basic objective of making the

overall risk for the WILO Group transparent and of keeping it

at a level that is acceptable.

The management board regularly receives risk analysis reports.

The supervisory board or rather the audit committee instructed

by the supervisory board is kept informed in detail about the

status and development of the risk management system.

The positive cash flow from financing activities of EUR 27.2

mill. in the 2006 financial year is primarily due to an issuance

of long-term Senior Notes with fixed interest rates for EUR

67.5 mill. (USD 80.0 mill.). We have thereby made good use

of the relatively low interest level in a favourable market envi-

ronment in order to increase our liquidity significantly and

to create a financing framework that supports our future busi-

ness development. Detailed explanations regarding the

financing structure of the WILO Group are given under sec-

tions [9.10] and [9.11] in the Notes.

Research and development. 

In the segment of heating and air-conditioning, the research

and development department has modified the Stratos high-

efficiency pump to develop the Stratos PARA, a pump that is

designed to meet the specific requirements of OEM applica-

tions. 

A new version of the Stratos ECO, the BMS, has also been

developed for remote control operation in facility manage-

ment systems. 

In addition, the group of wet running pumps without controls,

TOP-S, has been customised to meet the requirements of

the North American market and it has now obtained all the

necessary certifications.

Furthermore, the pump series Crono and Vero with dry running

motors has been expanded. Additionally, some versions of

pumps were fitted with new, internally developed and manu-

factured frequency converters. This reduces the required

operating power significantly, resulting in essential energy

savings for their users.

In the water and sewage segment, the research and develop-

ment activities focussed on the development of new motors

for 10 and 12-inch borehole pumps. A further focus was

the development of submersible motors with an internal water

cooler for sewage applications.

In the area of commercial and industrial applications, the range

of application for vertical multistage stainless steel pumps MVI

up to a volume flow of 140 m3 per hour has been expanded. 

A new electronic control device was created for the MVISE

line which significantly improved the ease of operation for

users of this pump. 

A major advancement with regard to efficient integration of

our pumps into central building control systems has been

achieved with the development of the innovative interface

module DigiCon. With this module, all WILO pumps with

communication systems can be integrated into a central

building control system. 

The total costs for research and development of the WILO

Group have increased by 11.1% compared with the previous

year and amounted to 2.8% of net sales.

(EUR mill.) 2006 2005* Changes

Cash flows from
operating activities 66.6 76.7 -13.2%

Cash flows from
investment activities -50.0 -36.0 38.9%

Cash flows from
financing activities 27.2 -42.0 >100%

Change in liquidity 43.8 -1.3 >100%

*Due to changes in accounting policies in the financial year 2006 the previous
year figures have been adjusted accordingly in section [7] in the Notes). 

Cash flows

2006 2005 Changes

in EUR mill. 24.1 21.7 11.1%

in % of net sales 2.8 2.9 -3.4%

Research and Development costs

2006 2005 Changes

Germany 1,784 1,678 6.3%

France 1,343 1,221 10.0%

India 792 783 1.1%

Korea 198 207 -4.3%

Other regions 1,502 1,096 37.0%

Total 5,619 4,985 12.7%

Number of employees at 31 December
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Outlook.

The leading German economic research institutes as well as

the International Monetary Fund (IMF) forecast a continuing

positive development for the global economy in 2007. The

economic research institutes anticipate an economic growth

rate in real terms of 3.1%. The IMF forecasts a global economic

growth rate of just below 5.0% for 2007, whereby the USA's

contribution to the economic upswing won't be as strong,

with a rate of growth of between 2.0% and 3.0%. Exceptionally

high growth rates are forecast, in particular, for China and

India. Economic research institutes anticipate real GDP growth

of around 2.2% in the euro zone countries.

The German government has put up its growth forecast for

the German economy to 1.7% – despite the VAT hike. The

model calculations of economic research institutes predict

real GDP growth of between 1.4% and 2.1%. 

The Central Association of the German Construction Industry

has raised its forecast for nominal growth in sales in the

construction sector in 2007 to 3.5%. The forecast for the com-

mercial construction sector is very positive at 8.0%, while

growth in sales in the public construction sector is expected

to be 1.0%. The German Sanitary Industry Association is

expecting 3.0% growth in sales in the entire building tech-

nology sector during 2007. Much of this growth in sales will

be accounted for by overseas business.

The WILO Group is internationally well positioned in order to

participate with above average success in the predicted eco-

nomic growth. This excellent positioning is due to the WILO

Group's longstanding, innovation-oriented business policy

and its international market presence. We will continue to

focus on innovation in 2007 and continue to consolidate our

system and application know-so that we can optimise our

products' energy-saving features and functional application

for the benefit of our customers.

The WILO Group has set itself ambitious targets for the 2007

financial year. It is aiming to increase net sales by 9.0% in

the heating and air-conditioning segment, and the target for

the water and sewage segment is even more ambitious at

nearly 20.0%. We anticipate crossing the billion threshold

in net sales by 2009. In order to achieve this goal we are also

aiming at a significant increase in net sales for the 2008

financial year.

In contrast to the growth in net sales, we are expecting EBIT

to remain more or less constant and the EBIT margin to decline

in 2007 compared with the previous year.The EBIT margin is

expected to decline as a result of growth in sales in low-

margin markets. For the 2008 financial year we are planning

an increase in EBIT compared with 2007. We are also assum-

ing that the EBIT margin will improve due to a disproportion-

ately low increase in administration and selling expenses. 

Unforeseeable developments and events may necessitate

revisions of expectations and may cause deviations from the

figures forecast in this report.

Risks and measures.

WILO regards economic cycle and market risks as risks that

potentially occur as a result of general economic, political

or social influences. The forecasts of renowned economic

research institutes and the International Monetary Fund for

the next few years are very positive. This has a mitigating

effect on economic cycle risks. Country-specific risks are

closely monitored in order that countermeasures can be

taken promptly as and when required. For instance, several

large Asian markets offer good opportunities which are,

however, accompanied by increased risks. We have significantly

lowered the risk potential by putting in place organisational

measures, establishing and optimising local production capac-

ities and the utilisation of synergies within the WILO Group.

Risks to value creation and technology are relatively easy to

control due to high entry barriers and WILO's strong market

position. In order to strengthen its market position, WILO

continuously invests in the development of new products

and growing markets so that customer requirements continue

to be met in the future and competitive advantages can be

achieved. WILO has invested 2.8% of the Group’s net sales in

research and development in the year under review. The risk

of quality loss is minimised through comprehensive quality

management based on uniform quality standards at all WILO

production facilities. 

Foreign currency risks result from a high purchasing and sales

volume in foreign currencies. This applies particularly for the

Asian and North American markets. Such risks are minimised

through effective foreign currency management, such as the

use of derivative financial instruments. Detailed information

regarding derivative financial instruments is given under sec-

tion [12] in the Notes.

Lost output risks are significantly reduced through the use

of modern manufacturing plants and professional control

systems. The potential danger of supply shortages is prevented

primarily through having several suppliers on hand. Moreover,

taking out appropriate insurances lowers the consequences

of such business risks.

The risk of customer default on payment is met by a Group-

wide, uniform and efficient system that comprises consis-

tent debt management and the monitoring of customer

payment patterns. Dependence on individual customers is

limited, as no more than 10% of WILO’s overall net sales are

generated through any one individual customer. 

WILO averts information technology risks such as loss of

data and system downtimes through daily business data

back-ups. Especially the business database that is used for

conduct production, materials management, order processing,

financial and cost accounting, meets the highest security

standards. Moreover, data files created by staff within the

server environment are also saved on a daily basis. System

downtimes are reduced to a minimum through WILO’s internal

support team. 

From today’s perspective, no risks which might endanger the

existence of the Group as a going concern are evident.

Events after the balance sheet date.

Significant events subject to reporting requirements did not

occur after the balance sheet date.
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Consolidated balance sheet as of 31 December 2006.

EUR thous. Note 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Non-current assets

Intangible assets (9.1) 59,177 53,488

Tangible assets (9.2) 134,081 123,582

Investments stated at equity (9.4) 2,038 0

Other financial assets (9.5) 11,677 5,694

Trade accounts receivable (9.7) 173 271

Other assets (9.7) 1,901 1,696

Deferred tax assets (8.10) 18,628 15,220

227,675 199,951

Current assets

Inventories (9.6) 135,001 111,357

Trade accounts receivable (9.7) 186,349 169,391

Receivables and other assets (9.7) 13,968 13,531

Cash (9.8) 59,332 16,138

394,650 310,417

Assets 622,325 510,368

Assets

EUR thous. Note 31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Equity (9.9)

Share capital 26,000 26,000

Earnings reserves 247,084 208,807

Foreign currency translation adjustment -3,649 -1,043

Treasury stock -5,533 -4,200

Equity before minority interest 263,902 229,564

Minority interest 1,609 783

265,511 230,347

Non-current liabilities

Liabilities due to banks (9.10) 77,772 25,278

Trade accounts payable (9.10) 3,257 2,687

Other liabilities (9.10) 14,328 12,905

Provisions for pensions (9.10) 36,889 35,898

Provisions for similar obligations (9.10) 6,517 7,542

Warranty provisions (9.10) 3,815 3,014

Deferred tax liabilities (8.10) 19,508 17,339

162,086 104,663

Current liabilities

Liabilities due to banks (9.11) 21,020 27,156

Trade accounts payable (9.11) 62,790 54,684

Other liabilities (9.11) 77,557 59,367

Current provisions (9.11) 33,361 34,151

194,728 175,358

Liabilities 622,325 510,368

Liabilities
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Consolidated income statement  
for the period 1 January to 31 December 2006.

EUR thous. Note 2006 2005*

Net sales (8.1) 873,408 750,436

Cost of sales (8.2) -526,473 -444,212

Gross profit 346,935 306,224

Selling expenses (8.3) -172,297 -152,811

Administrative costs (8.4) -53,615 -49,654

Research and development costs (8.5) -24,081 -21,650

Other operating income (8.6) 18,078 17,784

Other operating expenses (8.7) -12,928 -12,517

Operating result (EBIT) (8.11) 102,092 87,376

Result from investments stated at equity (8.8) -680 0

Financial result (8.9) -4,989 -4,411

Comprehensive income before taxes (8.11) 96,423 82,965

Income taxes (8.10) -35,550 -29,603

Comprehensive income after taxes (8.11) 60,873 53,362

thereof due to minority interests 826 666

thereof due to shareholders of WILO AG 60,047 52,696

The undiluted and diluted earnings per share 
are EUR 6.12 (2005: EUR 5.36 per share). (8.12)

*The figures relating to 2005 have been adjusted to this year’s presentation format. See section [7] in the notes for further information about the adjustments.

Consolidated income statement 

EUR thous. 2006 2005* Change

Operating result (EBIT) 102,092 87,376 14,716

Depreciation/revaluation of tangible assets (net) 27,614 27,280 334

Increase in non-current provisions 302 1,180 -878

Gains/Losses on asset disposals (net) -5 229 -234

Increase of inventories -20,465 -1,778 -18,687

Increase in trade accounts receivable and other assets that cannot
be allocated to investing or financing activities -16,400 -32,156 15,756

Decrease/increase in current provisions -1,690 11,071 -12,761

Decrease/increase in payments on account -209 700 -909

Increase in accounts payable and other liabilities that cannot
be allocated to investing or financing activities 14,848 10,694 4,154

Other non-cash items relating to operating activities -11,433 -6,348 -5,085

Gross cash flows from operating activities 94,654 98,248 -3,594

Income taxes paid -28,102 -21,517 -6,585

Cash flows from operating activities 66,552 76,731 -10,179

Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets 8 7 1

Payments to acquire intangible assets -1,185 -2,882 1,697

Proceeds from disposals of tangible assets 2,918 1,744 1,174

Payments to acquire tangible assets -36,756 -22,173 -14,583

Proceeds from disposals of financial assets 719 242 477

Payments to acquire financial assets -7,972 -1,954 -6,018

Payments to acquire investments in consolidated companies -7,733 -10,981 3,248

Cash flows from investing activities -50,001 -35,997 -14,004

Dividends paid to shareholders 18,747 -16,400 -2,347

Proceeds from the issuance of loans 67,500 74 67,426

Repayment of loans -14,176 -17,062 2,886

Payments for the acquisition of treasury stock -8,205 -4,200 -4,005

Proceeds from disposals of treasury stock 3,978 0 3,978

Interest received 1,923 422 1,501

Interest paid -5,055 -3,795 -1,260

Dividends received 55 50 5

Other non-cash items relating to financing activities -75 -1,088 1,013

Cash flows from financing activities 27,198 -41,999 69,197

Changes in cash 43,749 -1,265 45,014

Effects of changes in exchange rates -555 684 -1,239

Cash at the beginning of the period 16,138 16,719 -581

Cash at the end of the period 59,332 16,138 43,194

*The figures relating to 2005 have been adjusted due to changes in accounting policies and presentation format in 2006. 
See section [7] in the Notes for further information about the adjustments.

Consolidated cash flow statement

Consolidated cash flow statement
for the period 1 January to 31 December 2006.
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Statement of changes in equity 
in the period 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2006.

Foreign currency
Share Earnings translation Treasury Total equity Minority

EUR thous. capital reserve adjustment stock of WILO AG interest Total

Statement of changes in equity

1 January 2005 26,000 172,768 -7,765 0 191,003 0 191,003

Comprehensive income 2005 0 52,696 0 0 52,696 666 53,362

Dividends 0 -16,400 0 0 -16,400 0 -16,400

Cost of treasury stock 0 0 0 -4,200 -4,200 0 -4,200

Cost of minority interest 0 0 0 0 0 117 117

Foreign currency translation adjustment 0 0 6,722 0 6,722 0 6,722

Other changes 0 -257 0 0 -257 0 -257

31 December 2005 26,000 208,807 -1,043 -4,200 229,564 783 230,347

1 January 2006 26,000 208,807 -1,043 -4,200 229,564 783 230,347

Comprehensive income 2006 0 60,047 0 0 60,047 826 60,873

Dividends 0 -18,747 0 0 -18,747 0 -18,747

Cost of treasury stock 0 0 0 -8,205 -8,205 0 -8,205

Disposal of treasury stock 0 -2,894 0 6,872 3,978 0 3,978

Foreign currency translation adjustment 0 0 -2,606 0 -2,606 0 -2,606

Other changes 0 -129 0 0 -129 0 -129

31 December 2006 26,000 247,084 -3,649 -5,533 263,902 1,609 265,511

See section [9.9] in the Notes for further information about the statement of changes in equity.

Statutory profit reserve, other reserves and consolidated retained earnings have been combined in 2006 in the column "Earnings reserve" and the figures 
relating to 2005 have been adjusted accordingly.
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Analysis of Group fixed assets
from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2006.

4,563 295,871 1,257 0 47 45 946 2,978 5,273 355,830

0 4,110 -2 0 0 1 50 0 49 6,510

2,204 22,173 1,177 0 0 0 297 480 1,954 38,389

0 10,802 -1,097 0 10 0 0 0 -1,087 9,802

-247 -10,777 0 0 -1 0 -242 -47 -290 -11,344

-3,440 -17 -90 0 80 10 0 0 0 0

3,080 322,162 1,245 0 136 56 1,051 3,411 5,899 399,187

3,080 322,162 1,245 0 136 56 1,051 3,411 5,899 399,187

-10 -2,066 0 0 0 0 -8 0 -8 -2,739

12,443 36,756 6,486 2,718 0 17 1,431 38 10,690 56,774

3 3,845 -1,176 0 0 0 -2 0 -1,178 2,676

0 -11,819 0 -680 -90 -1 -727 0 -1,498 -13,697

-6,727 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8,789 348,878 6,555 2,038 46 72 1,745 3,449 13,905 442,201

0 177,081 118 0 0 13 57 0 188 190,804

0 1,481 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,900

0 5,347 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,549

0 23,483 0 0 0 0 74 0 74 27,280

0 0 -90 0 90 0 0 0 0 0

0 -8,812 0 0 0 0 -57 0 -57 -9,110

0 198,580 28 0 90 13 74 0 205 216,423

0 198,580 28 0 90 13 74 0 205 216,423

0 -957 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,096

0 1,657 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,666

0 24,517 0 0 0 0 0 75 75 27,682

0 -25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -68

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 -8,975 0 0 -90 0 0 0 -90 -9,379

0 214,797 28 0 0 13 74 75 190 235,228

4,563 118,790 1,139 0 47 32 889 2,978 5,085 165,026

3,080 123,582 1,217 0 46 43 977 3,411 5,694 182,764

3,080 123,582 1,217 0 46 43 977 3,411 5,694 182,764

8,789 134,081 6,527 2,038 46 59 1,671 3,374 13,715 206,973

Analysis of Group fixed assets

Tangible assets Financial assets Total
Payments on
account and

tangible assets Shares Investments Counter-
in course of in affiliated stated Investments Other insurance

construction Total companies at equity in associates Securities loans claims Total

Historical cost

Accumulated historical cost as at 1 January 2005 14,388 40,009 289 54,686 74,241 89,502 127,565

Currency translation 103 2,246 2 2,351 1,498 672 1,940

Additions 1,592 12,569 101 14,262 1,016 4,590 14,363

Changes to the basis of consolidation 87 0 0 87 4,105 5,641 1,056

Disposals -269 0 -8 -277 -131 -948 -9,451

Transfers 296 -191 -88 17 1,247 313 1,863

Accumulated historical cost as at 31 December 2005 16,197 54,633 296 71,126 81,976 99,770 137,336

Accumulated historical cost as at 1 January 2006 16,197 54,633 296 71,126 81,976 99,770 137,336

Currency translation -41 -622 -2 -665 -678 -763 -615

Additions 1,178 8,143 7 9,328 3,005 6,128 15,180

Changes to the basis of consolidation 9 0 0 9 608 3,159 75

Disposals -360 0 -20 -380 -1,121 -1,276 -9,422

Transfers 153 0 -153 0 2,737 4,158 -168

Accumulated historical cost as at 31 December 2006 17,136 62,154 128 79,418 86,527 111,176 142,386

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 January 2005 11,431 2,104 0 13,535 25,265 61,229 90,587

Currency translation 27 392 0 419 204 256 1,021

Changes to the basis of consolidation 51 151 0 202 618 4,154 575

Depreciation for the year 1,584 2,139 0 3,723 2,810 6,080 14,593

Transfers 0 0 0 0 258 -195 -63

Disposals -241 0 0 -241 -49 -1,140 -7,623

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December 2005 12,852 4,786 0 17,638 29,106 70,384 99,090

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 January 2006 12,852 4,786 0 17,638 29,106 70,384 99,090

Currency translation -19 -120 0 -139 -137 -440 -380

Changes to the basis of consolidation 9 0 0 9 2 1,601 54

Depreciation of the year 1,636 1,454 0 3,090 2,454 6,663 15,400

Additions -43 0 0 -43 0 0 -25

Transfers 0 0 0 0 27 177 -204

Disposals -314 0 0 -314 -290 -1,037 -7,648

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December 2006 14,121 6,120 0 20,241 31,162 77,348 106,287

Carrying amounts

As at 1 January 2005 2,957 37,905 289 41,151 48,976 28,273 36,978

As at 31 December 2005 3,345 49,847 296 53,488 52,870 29,386 38,246

As at 1 January 2006 3,345 49,847 296 53,488 52,870 29,386 38,246

As at 31 December 2006 3,015 56,034 128 59,177 55,365 33,828 36,099

Analysis of Group fixed assets

Intangible assets Tangible assets

Patents and Fixtures
industrial and fittings,
property Payments Land and Plant and tools and

EUR thous. rights Goodwill on account Total buildings machinery equipment
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Segment reporting.

Western Europe Eastern Europe
EUR thous. 2006 2005 2006 2005

External net sales 497,458 450,497 182,872 143,395

Inter-segment net sales 121,290 95,080 - -

EBIT* 59,553 53,102 34,781 27,603

depreciation and amortisation expense 
on intangible and tangible assets 15,995 21,011 5,375 1,365

other non-cash items 18,013 11,467 1,213 739

Result from investments stated at equity - - - -

Financial result - - - -

Income taxes - - - -

Comprehensive income after taxes - - - -

Assets 407,182 343,646 70,317 54,227

thereof investments stated at-equity - - - -

Liabilities 187,527 161,859 10,773 6,894

Investments in intangible
and tangible assets 23,769 18,908 3,761 2,103

Primary reporting format: by geographical region

Asia Other regions Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

158,841 127,943 34,237 28,601 873,408 750,436

2,381 1,146 - - 123,671 96,226

11,470 8,177 -3,712 -1,506 102,092 87,376

3,748 4,730 1,021 101 26,139 27,207

7,295 2,196 432 385 26,953 14,787

- - -680 - -680 -

- - - - -4,989 -4,411

- - - - -35,550 -29,603

- - - - 60,873 53,362

105,937 81,063 20,261 16,212 603,697 495,148

- - 2,038 - 2,038 -

30,361 31,546 4,593 863 233,254 201,162

7,437 2,432 2,971 988 37,938 24,431

Primary reporting format: by geographical region

Heating and air-conditioning Water and sewage
EUR thous. 2006 2005 2006 2005

External net sales 528,395 458,007 303,253 256,904

Assets 224,367 196,484 148,107 119,827

Investments 11,247 9,022 8,535 3,401

Segment reporting disclosures can be found in section [11] of the Notes.

*The figures relating to 2005 have been adjusted due to changes in accounting policies and presentation format in 2006.
See section [7] in the Notes for further information about the adjustments.

Secondary reporting format: by business segment

Other businesses Total
2006 2005 2006 2005

41,760 35,525 873,408 750,436

24,083 22,365 396,557 338,676

18,156 12,008 37,938 24,431

Secondary reporting format: by business segment
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a) IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.

The IASB published IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

in August 2005. This standard prescribes the disclosures

relating to financial instruments that were previously regu-

lated by IAS 30 Disclosures in the Financial Statements of

Banks and Similar Financial Institutions and IAS 32 Financial

Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The disclosure

checklist has been amended and supplemented. IFRS 7 is

effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

Earlier application is encouraged. This standard, which is to

be applied by all companies, will be adopted for the first time

by WILO AG in the 2007 financial year. It will be associated

with additional disclosures relating to financial instruments.

b) Amendment of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements: Capital Disclosures.

In August 2005, the IASB announced the amendment of IAS 1

in conjunction with the publication of IFRS 7 Financial Instru-

ments: Disclosures. This amendment introduces requirements

for disclosures which enable users of the financial statements

to make informed judgements with regard to the objectives,

policies and processes for the management of capital. The

amendment of IAS 1 will become effective for financial periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2007. Earlier application is

encouraged. WILO AG's adoption of this IAS 1 amendment in

the 2007 financial year will be associated with additional

disclosures in the Notes.

c) IFRS 8 Operating Segments. 

The IASB published IFRS 8 Operating Segments in November

2006. It replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting and aligns seg-

ment reporting with the requirements of the US Statement

of Financial Accounting Standard 131 (SFAS 131). IFRS 8

requires the entity to adopt the ‘management approach’ to

reporting on the financial performance of operating seg-

ments that are subject to disclosure requirements. Operating

segments are components of an organisation which deliver

separate information on financial performance that is regu-

larly assessed by the operating division's management to

evaluate segment performance and decide how to allocate

resources. Generally, the financial information to be reported

would be what the management uses internally for evaluating

segment performance and for decisions on allocating resources

to operating segments. 

The main reporting requirements associated with the new

IFRS 8 are listed below:

• Identification of operating segments based on internal

reports

• Reconciliation of amounts disclosed for reportable segments

to the corresponding amounts in the financial statements

• Provision of descriptive information about the valuation

methods applied and a breakdown of revenues by product

or service, country and major customer

IFRS 8 applies to the annual financial statements for periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2009. Earlier application is

encouraged. The impact of the application of IFRS 8 on the

WILO Group's consolidated financial statements is currently

being assessed.

(1.) General information.

WILO AG (the "Company"), which is based in Dortmund/

Germany, is the WILO Group's holding company. The Group's

core business operations are the production and world-wide

sales of machines, in particular liquid pumps and appliances.

The WILO Group develops, manufactures and markets pumps

and building technology systems, in particular for heating,

refrigeration, air-conditioning and ventilation systems, for

water supply and for sewage and effluent disposal.

(2.) Principles underlying the consolidated financial 

statements.

The consolidated financial statements of WILO AG at 31

December 2006 were prepared in accordance with the Inter-

national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which are now

mandatory for companies in the European Union. The 2006

consolidated financial statements also take into account all

applicable interpretations of the International Financial

Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC). WILO AG applies

the option provided for in § 315 a, paragraph 3 of the German

Commercial Code (HGB) and is therefore not required to pre-

pare consolidated financial statements pursuant to German

commercial law. To ensure equivalence with consolidated

financial statements prepared in accordance with German

commercial law, the disclosure requirements of § 315 a,

paragraph 1 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) are met

in addition to the IFRS disclosure requirements. The IFRS,

including the amended IAS standards which were still effective

on the reporting date, have been applied in the consolidated

financial statements. The consolidated financial statements

are, without exception, compliant with IFRS and provide an

accurate account of the company's financial position.

In order to improve the transparency of the statements, several

items on the income statement and balance sheet have been

combined. These items are shown and explained separately

in the Notes. The income statement was prepared using the

cost of sales method.

All amounts are stated in thousands of EURO ("EUR thous.").

The annual financial statements of subsidiaries outside the

European Monetary Union were converted from the national

currency into EURO.

(3.) Application of amended or new standards.

The standards and interpretations which became effective for

the first time in their current form on 1 January 2006 do

not have any substantial impact on WILO AG's consolidated

financial statements for the 2006 financial year.

The IASB has issued the following standards, amendments

to existing standards and interpretations in the calendar year

2006 which are not yet effective and have not yet been

applied by WILO AG.

• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

• IFRS 8 Operating Segments 

• Amendment of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:

Capital Disclosures

• IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

• IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

• IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

• IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The following only includes standards and amendments to

existing standards which may have an impact on the consoli-

dated financial statements of WILO AG.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the 2006 financial year.
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In 2006, the carrying amounts which were determined pur-

suant to IFRS immediately prior to the merger corresponded

to the amounts recognised at the time of the acquisition

within the scope of purchase price allocation. No hidden

assets or liabilities were identified in the purchase price allo-

cation process.

WILO AG acquired 100.0% of the shares in CCD Pumps Ltd.,

London/United Kingdom, at the end of December 2006 in

order to extend its service network in the United Kingdom.

The company will be consolidated on 1 January 2007.

A total of EUR 16,023 thous. (2005: EUR 12,940 thous.) were

invested in corporate acquisitions and subsequent acquisition

costs in the year under review. The majority of acquisitions

in 2006 were financed out of cash flow and correspond, in

the main, to the net outflow of cash holdings.  This amount

includes transaction costs of EUR 482 thous.  (2005: EUR

460 thous.). The goodwill pursuant to IFRS ensuing from the

consolidation of the corporate acquisitions in 2006, and from

the subsequent settlement of acquisition costs, amounted

to EUR 8,143 thous. (2005: EUR 12,569 thous.) (see [9.1] in

the Notes). The acquisition of Circulating Pumps Ltd. will

enable WILO AG to increase its share of the UK market for

heating circulation pumps.

In 2006 financial year, WILO AG acquired a 50.0% interest in

the newly founded joint venture company, WILO Middle

East LLC, Riyadh/Saudi Arabia. The interest in this company

is reported at equity in accordance with IAS 31.

The associated company EMU Ile de France S.A.R.L., Ste.

Geneviève-des-Bois/France, was reported in the balance sheet

at cost in 2006 due to its insignificance. EMU Ile de France

S.A.R.L., Ste. Geneviève-des-Bois/France contributed 0.1%

of consolidated net income in 2006 and its equity represents

less than 0.1% of Group equity.

(5.) Consolidation methods.

Business combinations are reported in the balance sheet

according to the purchase method as per IFRS 3, and all hidden

assets and liabilities are disclosed. The assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities of the company acquired are identified

in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 3 at their fair value

at the time of acquisition and compared with the cost of

acquisition (purchase price allocation).  Shares in the fair values

of assets and liabilities which are not acquired are disclosed

as minority interests. The amount by which costs exceed the

value of equity acquired is capitalised as goodwill and subse-

quently subjected to a regular annual impairment test. If the

value of equity acquired exceeds the costs incurred by the

acquiring company, the difference is stated as net profit for the

period after a reassessment of the purchase price allocation.

Shares in significant jointly controlled entities are reported

according to the equity method pursuant to IAS 31. 

Intra-group sales, expenditure and revenue, receivables and

liabilities and contingent liabilities are eliminated. The assets

in the inventory relating to intra-Group transactions are

adjusted to eliminate inter-company results. The impact of

consolidation transactions which affect operating income on

income tax are taken into account and the corresponding

deferred taxes are recognised.

(4.) Basis of consolidation.

In addition to WILO AG, the consolidated financial statements

include all significant entities which are subject to the direct

or indirect control of WILO AG. The balance sheets and the

income statements of these entities were included in the

consolidated financial statements pursuant to IAS 27. 

In addition to WILO AG, the consolidated financial statements

at 31 December 2006 include 6 German entities (2005: 5)

and 55 foreign entities (2005: 59) in which WILO AG directly

or indirectly holds the majority of voting rights. Four subsi-

diaries (2005: 7) are not included in the consolidated financial

statements. They are of subordinate significance for the

assessment of a true and fair view of the Group's net assets,

financial position, results of operations and cash flows

because they account for less than 1.0% of its consolidated

net income or consolidated total assets. The basis of con-

solidation has changed since last year as follows:

• First-time consolidation

In the year under review, Circulating Pumps Ltd., King’s Lynn,

Norfolk/United Kingdom, in which a 100.0% stake was

acquired in May 2006, and FLOM S.A.R.L., Couzon au Mont

d’Or/France, in which 100.0% of shares have been held

since the end of 2005, were included in the basis of consoli-

dation for the first time. WILO Industriebeteiligungen mbH,

Dortmund/Germany, WILO Caspian LLC, Baku/Azerbaijan and

WILO ELEC CO. Ltd., Qinhuangdao/China were also consoli-

dated in 2006.

• Mergers

In the year under review, the Aquanox Group, comprising

Aquanox (Pty) Ltd., Cape Town/South Africa, FTT Pumps (WP)

Ltd., Cape Town/South Africa, FTT Pumps (EC) Ltd., Port

Elizabeth/South Africa, FTT Pumps (GP) Ltd., Midrand/South

Africa, FTT Pumps (FS) Ltd., Bloemfontein/South Africa, 

FTT Pumps (KZN) Ltd., Durban/South Africa and Brian

Williams & Co (Pty) Ltd., Stellenbosch/South Africa were

merged with SALMSON South Africa Ltd., Johannesburg/South

Africa. ESTODDI S.A., Villers le Bretonneux/France was also

merged with S.E.S.E.M. S.A.S, Saint-Denis/France.

The aforementioned first-time consolidations have increased

consolidated net sales by EUR 10,607 thous. and reduced

comprehensive income by EUR 1,710 thous. Had the afore-

mentioned entities all been consolidated on 1 January 2006,

consolidated net sales would have increased by EUR 17,548

thous. and comprehensive income would have declined by

EUR 1,172 thous.

The changes to the basis of consolidation have had the 

following impact on the consolidated balance sheet:

EUR thous.

Tangible assets 2,188

Inventories 3,229

Accounts receivable
and other assets 3,133

Cash 249

Total 8,799

Assets

EUR thous.

Equity 2,563

Non-current provisions
and liabilities 479

Current provisions
and liabilities 5,757

Total 8,799

Liabilities
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The consolidated financial statements are principally prepared

according to the cost  method with the exception of derivative

financial instruments, which are measured at fair value. The

accounting and valuation principles used in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are detailed below.

Expenditure and revenue recognition.

Revenue is only recognised when the service has been per-

formed or the goods or products have been delivered. Net sales

are reported after the deduction of discounts, price reductions,

customer bonuses and rebates. Costs of sales include all

unit and overhead costs, as well as depreciation on production

facilities, that directly contribute to the generation of revenue.

This item also includes costs associated with the allocation

of warranty provisions. Operating costs are recognised in the

income statement when the service is rendered or when

they are incurred. Interest income and interest expenses are

reported in accordance with the accruals concept. 

Administrative costs and selling expenses.

The administrative costs and selling expenses pertain to

attributable personnel expenses and material costs, as well

as the depreciation applicable to each functional area.

Research and development costs.

Research and development costs are reported separately

within the income statement. The recognition criteria for

the capitalisation of development costs in accordance with

IAS 38 were not met in 2006 and 2005.

Borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs are not capitalised.

Intangible assets.

Acquired intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are

capitalised at cost of acquisition and amortised on a straight-

line basis in accordance with their useful lives  (3 to 5 years

in the WILO Group). Amortisation was allocated to the relevant

functional areas in the period under review. There are no

internally generated intangible assets.

Goodwill and acquired intangible assets with indefinite useful

lives are not subjected to scheduled amortisation pursuant

to IFRS 3 in conjunction with IAS 36, but to impairment tests

which are performed annually and if an indication of impair-

ment exists. If impairment exists and the value of the asset

is reduced, the unscheduled amortisation of goodwill or of

the acquired intangible asset with indefinite useful life is

recognised under other operating expenses.

(6.) Currency translation.

Foreign currency transactions in the financial statements of

WILO AG and those of the consolidated subsidiaries are

translated into the functional currency at the effective rate

on the transaction date. Monetary assets and foreign currency

debts are translated at the average rate on the reporting date,

whereby exchange gains and losses are recognised in the

income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities which

are measured at historical cost are translated at the effective

rate on the transaction date. If non-monetary items are to

be measured at fair value, the rate effective on the date of

measurement is used.

The items reported in the financial statements of each con-

solidated entity are measured in the currency of the entity's

primary economic environment (functional currency).

Financial statements prepared in functional currency (other

than euro) are translated to euro. Euro is the functional

currency for the consolidated financial statements and the

presentation currency. All assets and liabilities are translated

at the effective rate on the reporting date, and the income

statement items are translated at the annual average rates

closest to the transaction rates for inclusion in the consoli-

dated financial statements. The differences resulting from

currency translation are recognised directly in equity as a

special item without impact on profit or loss until the subsi-

diary is disposed of.

A table of the exchange rates used for currency translation is

included on page 166.

In the 2006 financial year, high inflation adjustments pursuant

to IAS 29 were not necessary because the WILO Group does

not operate any subsidiaries in hyperinflationary economies.

(7.) Accounting policies.

The financial statements of WILO AG, its domestic and foreign

subsidiaries were prepared in accordance with standard

accounting and valuation rules in conformity with IAS 27. 

A current/ non-current classification is made in the balance

sheet. An asset or liability is classified as current if it is expected

to be realised within 12 months of the reporting date.

Assumptions and estimates.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in

conformity with the IASB standards requires the management

to make assumptions and estimates that affect reported

amounts and related disclosures of assets and liabilities,

revenue and expenditure and contingent liabilities that are

reported in the balance sheet.  The majority of assumptions

and estimates relate to the assessment of standard useful

lives for Group assets and the measurement and reporting

procedure for provisions, particularly the provisions for pen-

sions and similar obligations, goodwill and warranty provisions,

and regarding the extent to which future tax relief options

can be utilised. The underlying assumptions and estimates,

and the carrying amounts, are explained in the relevant sect-

ions of the Notes. In some cases, the actual values can

diverge from the assumptions and estimates made. Deviations

from assumptions and estimates are recognised in the income

statement at the time when they are identified. 



135134

Investments stated at equity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are measured

using the equity method of accounting and reported under

"Investments stated at equity" in the balance sheet. The

proportionate consolidation method is not applied.

Other investments.

Shareholdings in non-consolidated subsidiaries reported as

other financial assets are measured at cost of acquisition

unless the fair value deviates from this. If the impairment test

reveals that an additional devaluation is necessary, it is recog-

nised in the income statement. Investments in associates

are not stated at equity but at amortised cost because they

are of subordinate significance for the WILO Group.

Loans and receivables are recognised at amortised cost pur-

suant to IAS 39. 

The analysis of Group fixed assets for the years 2006 and

2005 is included on pages 124 and 125.

Financial assets.

Financial assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition on the

settlement date, which is the date on which the asset came

into being or was transferred. Subsequent measurements

pursuant to IAS 39 differentiate between receivables and

loans, held-to-maturity financial assets, available-for-sale

financial assets and held-for-trading financial assets which

are reported as current assets. Receivables or loans and

held-to-maturity financial assets are reported at the lower of

amortised costs and recoverable amount. Available-for-sale

financial assets, which are reported under the item of current

assets, and held-for-trading assets are recognised at fair

value if this can be reliably established. The gains and losses

ensuing from changes in fair value are recognised in the

income statement in the period in which they occur. Unrealised

gains and losses ensuing from changes in the fair value of

the available-for-sale financial instruments are transferred

to the reserves and recognised in equity. If held-for-sale

assets are disposed of or impaired, the cumulative fair value

adjustments in the reserves are recognised as gains or losses

from financial assets in the income statement. The WILO

Group only has an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity

financial assets and available-for-sale financial instruments.

There are no financial assets held for trading purposes in

the WILO Group.

Leases.

If a lease can be classified as a finance lease pursuant to IAS

17, the leased asset is capitalised at the lower of its fair value

and the present value of future minimum lease payments

and it is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter

of the lease term and the asset's useful life. At inception,

the finance lease is recognised in the balance sheet pursuant

to IAS 17 as an asset and a liability.

Finance lease agreements exist, in the main, for three factory

buildings. Lease agreements have also been concluded in

respect of IT equipment. The leased assets will be returned

to the lessor at the end of the basic term of the lease. 

If consolidated companies are lessees on an operating lease

basis, the lease or rental payments are directly recognised as

an expense in the income statement.

Tangible assets.

Tangible assets that are used in business operations for longer

than one year are measured at historical cost less scheduled

straight-line depreciation. Historical cost comprises the actual

purchase price plus all directly attributable costs incurred in

getting the fixed asset in a condition for use. The underlying

useful lives reflect customary asset depreciation. Buildings

have useful lives of between 10 and 30 years. Buildings and

installations on external sites are depreciated on the basis of

the lower of lease term and useful life. The useful life of

technical equipment and machines is up to 14 years. Fixtures 

and fittings, tools and equipment which are used to a normal

degree are depreciated over 3 to 13 years. The component

approach is used to report significant assets in the balance

sheet subject to the requirements of IAS 16 being met.

Depreciation is allocated to the relevant functional areas in

the period under review.

Asset impairment.

An impairment test is performed at each reporting date to

assess whether an asset is impaired. Assets that are subject

to scheduled depreciation are also impairment tested if there

are indications that the carrying amount (net book value) is

higher than the recoverable amount. The asset's recoverable

amount is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and

value in use. 

Assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill are subjected

to an impairment test if there are indications that impair-

ment exists. The impairment test for this group of assets is

performed at least once a year. Impairment is established at

individual asset level for the smallest cash-generating unit

(CGU) to which the asset belongs and compared with the

recoverable amount. Impairments of CGUs initially reduce the

goodwill allocated to the CGU and are then distributed on a

pro rata basis among the other assets. Impairments are

reported under the item of other operating expenses in the

income statement. The CGUs correspond to the Product

Business Units (PBU) in the WILO Group.
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Derivative financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments ("derivatives") are used within

the WILO Group for interest rate, currency and market risk

hedging purposes. However, 'hedge accounting' according to

IFRS is not applied. Pursuant to IAS 39, all financial derivatives

are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost and

subsequently measured at fair value following active market

prices. Changes to fair value are recognised in the income

statement. Derivatives with a positive fair value are reported

as receivables under the item of other assets and derivatives

with a negative fair value are reported as liabilities under

the item of other liabilities.

At 31 December 2006, derivative financial instruments are

reported in the balance sheet as stand-alone derivatives,

which means that all market value changes are directly

recognised in the income statement. 

Deferred taxes.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are formed

pursuant to IAS 12 in respect of all temporary differences

between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and its

tax base according to IFRS. Deferred tax assets also include

tax reduction claims ensuing from the expected utilisation of

existing loss carryforwards in subsequent years, provided

that the utilisation of these loss carryforwards is guaranteed

with sufficient certainty. Deferred tax assets are subjected to

an impairment test on the reporting date. Deferred taxes are

measured on the basis of the rates that apply under current 

national legislation or are expected to apply when the asset

is realised or the liability is settled. The consequences of

profit distribution on taxation are not recognised until the

profit appropriation proposal has been endorsed. Deferred tax

assets are only offset against deferred tax liabilities if they

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority

and if they have matching terms.

The reasons for the deferred taxes at 31 December 2006 are

specified in section [8.10] of the Notes. 

Government grants.

In accordance with IAS 20, a government grant is only recog-

nised if there is reasonable assurance of compliance with the

conditions attached to it and that the grant will be received.

The WILO Group receives research grants and investment

subsidies which are recognised in the income statement when

they become receivable. Investment subsidies are recognised

as deferred income and written back over the useful life of

the subsidised asset.  

Equity.

Treasury stock is measured at cost and reported under a

separate item as a deduction from equity. 

Inventories.

Raw materials, supplies and goods are measured at cost,

taking the net realisable values into account.  Costs are cal-

culated using the weighted average cost method.

Work in progress and finished goods are recognised at cost.

This includes all costs which are directly attributable to the

manufacturing process and an appropriate portion of prod-

uction-related overheads. Production-related depreciation,

pro-rata administration costs and pro-rata social security

costs are also reported under this item. Interest on borrow-

ings is not included in the costs. Adjustments are made in

respect of raw materials and supplies, goods and products

with quality and functional defects, as well as for sales risks.

Measurement on the reporting date is made at the lower of

historical cost, on the one hand, and net realisable value, on

the other. 

Construction contracts.

Construction contracts are reported in the balance sheet

according to the percentage of completion (POC) method

pursuant to IAS 11. The percentage of completion to be

applied is calculated using the cost-to-cost method. When

the percentage of completion has been ascertained, the pro-

portion of realised sales attributable to these contracts in

progress is calculated on the basis of their completion status.

If the advances received exceed the attributable revenue, a

POC liability exists. If the advances received are less than the

attributable revenue, a POC receivable exists. 

All risks associated with construction contracts are taken

into account in the measurement of construction contracts

in progress.

Accounts receivable and other assets.

Current assets comprise trade accounts receivable, other

receivables and other assets and cash (cheques, cash on

deposit in banking accounts and cash on hand). All assets

are initially recognised at cost on the settlement date, i.e.

the when the receivable comes into existence or ownership

is transferred.

Trade accounts receivable, other receivables and other

assets are reported in the balance sheet at amortised cost.

In addition to the necessary specific provisions for bad debt,

recognisable general credit risks are taken into account by

forming flat-rate bad debt provisions based on past experi-

ence. Receivables and other assets with a term of more than

12 months are discounted to present value and reported

under non-current assets.
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Liabilities.

Liabilities arising from finance lease agreements are recog-

nised at the time when the lease contract is concluded at 

the present value of the leasing rate. All other liabilities are

recognised at the amount repayable or amortised costs. 

Changes in accounting policies.

In the 2006 financial year, we made retrospective changes

to disclosures of interest income and expenses relating to the

accumulation and discounting of long-term provisions and

non-current liabilities in the income statement. These interest

income and expenses are now not recognised as functional

cost elements, but as financial income and expenses in the

financial result. This change was made to enable the disclosure

of financing and interest effects separately from EBIT and to

improve reporting transparency. The figures for the previous

year have been adjusted accordingly. The financial statements

relating to earlier periods have not been changed.

The changes to the disclosures have no impact on the balance

sheet. They have a positive effect on EBIT and a negative

effect on the financial result in the income statement. On

balance, this change has no impact on comprehensive income. 

The changes to the disclosures have the following impact on

the figures in the consolidated financial statements:

Provisions for pensions.

Defined benefit plans.

Provisions are formed in respect of contingent liabilities

for pension obligations. According to IAS 19, the pension

provisions for benefit obligations are determined using the

internationally recognised projected unit credit method.

These calculations are based on relevant reports and take

biometric computation bases into account. Actuarial gains

and losses which exceed 10.0% of the greater of the defined

benefit obligation or the fair value of plan assets are recog-

nised according to the corridor method. When recognition

is necessary, the amount recognised is amortised over the

remaining working lives of the participating employees.

Expenses arising from the endowment of pension provisions,

with the exception of the interest portion reported in the

financial result, are allocated to the relevant functional areas.

The defined benefit obligation is determined on the basis of

actuarial methods which are essential for the measurement

of projected benefits. The measurement of projected benefits

in the year under review is based on a discount rate of

4.30% (2005: 3.75%) and the most recent actuarial mortality

tables. A pension adjustment rate of 1.75% (2005: 1.75%)

per year is assumed. All other parameters remain unchanged.

The annual rate of salary increase is assumed to be 3.0%

(2005: 3.0%). The annual increase of the contribution assess-

ment ceiling for statutory pension funds is assumed to be

3.0% (2005: 3.0%). An average fluctuation rate of 4.5%

per year is assumed (2005: 4.0%). An estimated return rate

for plan assets of 5.0% (2005: 6.0%) is expected, based on

historic data.

The actuarial present value of pension obligations calculated

using the projected unit credit method is reduced by the fair

value of plan assets, provided that the criteria specified in

IAS 19 for plan assets are met.

Defined contribution plans.

The obligation in respect of defined contribution plans is

oriented on the contributions to be paid in the period under

review.

Other provisions.

The provisions for taxes include provisions for current income

tax liabilities. According to IAS 37, the provisions are formed

if a past event gives rise to an obligation vis-à-vis a third

party which will probably result in an outflow of resources,

whereby it is possible to reliably estimate the extent of the

obligation. Non-current provisions amounting to the net

present value of the anticipated obligation are formed in

respect of liabilities which are not expected to result in an

outflow of resources until the subsequent year. Discounting

is carried out at market interest rates. Settlement value also

includes anticipated cost increases. The measurement of the

provisions is reviewed on each reporting date. Provisions are

not offset against rights of recourse.

Cost of sales -526,507 34 -526,473 -443,955 -257 -444,212

Gross profit 346,901 34 346,935 306,481 -257 306,224

Administrative expenses -55,378 1,763 -53,615 -52,268 2,614 -49,654

Operating result (EBIT) 100,295 1,797 102,092 85,019 2,357 87,376

Financial result -3,192 -1,797 -4,989 -2,054 -2,357 -4,411

Impact of changes to disclosures and accounting policies

2006 2005
Previous New Previous New

EUR thous. disclosure Change disclosure disclosure Change disclosure
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(8.5) Research and development costs.

(8.6) Other operating income.

The currency differences from operating activities mainly

include profits resulting from the different exchange rates

on the date of origination and date of payment of foreign

currency receivables and liabilities, and price gains resulting

from measurement at the effective rate on the reporting

date. Foreign currency losses are reported under other opera-

ting expenses.

(8.7) Other operating expenses.

(8.8) Result from investments stated at equity.

The 2006 result from investments stated at equity pertains

exclusively to the jointly controlled entity, WILO Middle East

LLC, Riyadh/Saudi Arabia.

(8.) Income statement disclosures.

(8.1) Net sales.

In 2006, revenue of EUR 11,174 thous. (2005: EUR 10,912

thous.) was received in respect of long-term construction

contracts according to the POC method. 

(8.2) Cost of sales.

This item includes the direct expenses incurred in producing

goods for sale, including the cost of materials that comprise

the goods sold. 

(8.3) Selling expenses.

(8.4) Administrative expenses.

Administrative expenses are administrative costs that are not

attributable to production, development or sales.

EUR thous. 2006 in % 2005 in %

Western Europe 497,458 57.0 450,497 60.0

Eastern Europe 182,872 20.9 143,395 19.1

Asia 158,841 18.2 127,943 17.1

Other regions 34,237 3.9 28,601 3.8

Total 873,408 100.0 750,436 100.0

Net sales

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Raw materials and supplies -377,279 -319,938

Personnel expenses -85,186 -77,223

Depreciation -17,158 -15,951

External services -7,370 -5,344

Other personnel costs -7,815 -5,299

Legal and consulting costs -1,857 -1,619

Other costs of production -29,808 -18,838

Total -526,473 -444,212

Cost of sales

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Personnel costs -77,665 -70,891

Advertising costs -22,881 -20,288

Outgoing freights -20,150 -16,326

Other sales force costs -14,859 -12,494

Bad debt provisions 
on receivables -3,680 -1,973

Depreciation -4,153 -3,182

Other operating expenses -28,909 -27,657

Total -172,297 -152,811

Selling expenses

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Personnel costs -28,530 -23,262

Overhead costs -8,454 -8,650

Depreciation -3,488 -4,194

Other operating expenses -13,143 -13,548

Total -53,615 -49,654

Administrative expenses

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Personnel costs -14,316 -12,990

Depreciation -1,339 -1,732

Other operating expenses -8,426 -6,928

Total -24,081 -21,650

Research and development costs

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Currency differences 
from operating activities 4,237 5,691

Income from the 
release of flat-rate 
bad debt provisions 858 401

Income from disposals 
of fixed assets 676 222

Income from the release 
of bad debt provisions 578 107

Government grants 1,100 76

Other operating income 10,629 11,287

Total 18,078 17,784

Other operating income

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Currency differences 
from operating activities -6,311 -3,654

Losses resulting 
from the disposal 
of fixed assets -671 -451

Other operating expenses -5,946 -8,412

Total -12,928 -12,517

Other operating expenses
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The deferred taxes of EUR 86 thous. (2005: EUR 405 thous.)

that are recognised in equity mainly result from currency

translation and the first-time consolidation of entities.

Tax loss carryforwards of EUR 5,866 thous. (2005: EUR 6,080

thous.) existed on the reporting date. EUR 2,619 thous. (2005:

EUR 2,424 thous.) of these have an indefinite carryforward

period. EUR 3,247 thous. (2005: EUR 3,656 thous.) of tax

loss carryforwards can only be used for a limited period of

between 5 and 20 years.

Taking the local income tax rate into account, capitalised

deferred taxes in respect of loss carryforwards are EUR 1,271

thous. (2005: EUR 1,993 thous.). EUR 1,067 thous. (2005:

EUR 1,962 thous.) of these were not recognised on the

reporting date because it is not probable that they will be

used in future.

(8.9) Financial result.

Currency differences relating to financing activities result

exclusively from the conversion of the senior notes in the

amount of EUR 67.5 mill. (USD 80 mill.) which were taken up

in 2006 (see section [9.10] in the Notes). In contrast, the

loss ensuing from fair value measurement of the derivative

financial instrument which is used to hedge the senior notes

against currency risks in the amount of EUR 4,454 thous. is

reported under the item of derivative financial instrument

losses.

(8.10) Income taxes. 

Current domestic taxes are calculated on the basis of a mixed

taxation rate of 39.5% (2005: 39.5%). It remains unchanged

since last year and comprises corporation tax of 25%, a

solidarity surcharge of 5.5% and 13% trade tax. The local

income tax rates which currently apply for foreign entities

vary between 10.0% and 40.0% (2005: 10.0% and 42.7%).

Allocation of deferred taxes.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities which have been formed

in connection with recognition and valuation differences

relating to the individual balance sheet items and in connec-

tion with tax carryforwards are shown below.

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Currency differences relating 
to financing activities 6,806 0

Other interest and 
similar income 1,916 1,002

Derivative financial
instrument gains 1,621 1,410

Other financial income 62 52

Financial income 10,405 2,464

Derivative financial
instrument losses -8,559 -301

Interest and 
similar expenses -5,059 -4,141

Accumulation of 
non-current provisions
and liabilities -1,701 -2,357

Other financial costs -75 -76

Financial costs -15,394 -6,875

Total -4,989 -4,411

Financial result

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Income taxes in the
year under review -35,338 -30,123

Income taxes relating 
to other periods -1,680 893

Actual income taxes -37,018 -29,230

Deferred tax assets /
liabilities 1,468 -373

Income taxes -35,550 -29,603

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
EUR thous. 2006 2005 2006 2005

Intangible assets 14 17 2,716 2,781

Tangible assets 113 112 10,175 10,871

Financial assets 4 4 187 0

Inventories 3,958 3,353 65 270

Current receivables 1,430 1,205 551 1,173

Non-current receivables 10 0 0 50

5,529 4,691 13,694 15,145

Provisons for pensions 4,402 4,582 29 72

Provisons for taxes 4 14 145 134

Other provisions 981 1,744 2,711 1,906

Advance payments received 116 49 37 0

Trade accounts receivable 470 760 10 72

Liabilities due to banks 0 424 2,873 0

Other liabilities 6,922 2,925 9 10

Tax loss carryforwards 204 31 0 0

13,099 10,529 5,814 2,194

Amount carried on the balance sheet 18,628 15,220 19,508 17,339

Allocation of deferred taxes
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(8.12) Earnings per share.

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the portion of

comprehensive income attributable to WILO AG shareholders

by the weighted average number of shares. Both undiluted

and diluted earnings per share are EUR 6.12 (2005: EUR 5.36).

As of 2006, earnings per share will be calculated after deduc-

tion of minority interest. Earnings per share for 2005 have

been accordingly adjusted from EUR 5.42 to EUR 5.36.

(9.) Balance sheet disclosures.

(9.1) Intangible assets.

Patents and industrial property rights have a limited useful

life and are amortised over a 3-year period.

The increase in goodwill is mainly due to the first-time con-

solidation of acquisitions in 2006 and due to subsequent

acquisition costs. Goodwill is subjected to an impairment test

if there are indications that impairment exists. The impairment

test is performed at least once a year. Within the scope of

the impairment test the recoverable amount of the cash

generating unit is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and

value in use. In this process, the fair value less cost to sell

reflects the best estimate of the amount for which an inde-

pendent third party would purchase the CGU. Value in use is

the present value of the estimated future cash flow which

can be expected in connection with the CGU's continued use.

Fair value less cost to sell is calculated using the discounted

cash flow method on the basis of approved plans with a

mid-term horizon of three years. An appropriate, unit-specific

growth factor is taken into account. These plans are based

on past experience and projected market development. It

was ascertained that no impairment occurred in respect of

the "Sub Tec", "Water Tec" and "Small Circulators" CGUs,

which account for the major portion of goodwill. The discount

rates which are applied in the annual impairment test are

developed on the basis of market data. In the 2006 financial

year, the discount rates applied to the cash-generating units

were 7.6% respectively 7.7% after tax.

Reconciliation of income taxes.

The deferred tax assets for the domestic entities were calcu-

lated on the basis of a mixed rate of taxation of 39.5%, as

was the case last year. The taxation rate includes corporation

tax of 25.0%, a solidarity surcharge of 5.5% and the Group

trade tax rate of 13.0%. 

WILO AG reports a tax expense of EUR 35,550 thous. (2005:

EUR 29,603 thous.) in the consolidated income statement for

2006. This is EUR 2,537 thous. lower (2005: EUR 3,168 thous.

lower) than the expected tax charge of EUR 38,087 thous.

(2005: EUR 32,771 thous.), which applies if the domestic

rate of 39.5% (2005: 39.5%) is applied at Group level.

This difference exists for the following reasons:

(8.11) Comprehensive income.

EBIT has been reported before the financial result and income

taxes since 2005. The income and expenses in the consoli-

dated income statement were used to calculate EBIT and

comprehensive income. The interest result is contained in

financial result in the income statement.
EUR thous. 2006 2005

Comprehensive income 
before tax 96,423 82,965

Projected tax expense -38,087 -32,771

Tax rate changes 0 -127

Difference to 
overseas tax rates 8,305 7,134

Goodwill amortisation and
other consolidation processes -2,630 -1,277

Other permanent differences -1,545 -1,801

Tax-free income 575 -1

Deferred tax assets on tax
loss carryforwards not
recognised in the balance sheet 12 -907

Witholding tax -793 -587

Taxes relating to other periods -1,680 893

Other 293 -159

Actual tax expense -35,550 -29,603

Reconciliation

EUR thous. 2006 2005

EBIT 102,092 87,376

Result from investments
stated at equity -680 0

Financial result -4,989 -4,411

Comprehensive income  
before taxes 96,423 82,965

Income taxes -35,550 -29,603

Comprehensive income 
after taxes 60,873 53,362

Comprehensive income

2006 2005

Income attributable 
to WILO AG shareholders  
in EUR thous. 60,047 52,696

Number of shares 
at 31 December 9,827,000 9,760,000

Weighted average 
number of shares 9,813,872 9,840,000

Earnings per share in EUR 6.12 5.36

Earnings per share

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Patents and industrial 
property rights 3,015 3,345

Goodwill 56,034 49,847

Payments on account 128 296

Total 59,177 53,488

Intangible assets
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(9.2) Tangible assets.

The tangible assets include EUR 8,894 thous. of leased

assets (2005: EUR 8,018 thous.). Since they are classified as

finance lease under IAS 17, all risks and rewards incident to

ownership are transferred to the Group. The net asset values

are as follows:

The total of future minimum lease payments and their fair

values are shown in the table below. The corresponding

liabilities amounted to EUR 8,044 thous. (2005: EUR 7,553

thous.) at 31 December 2006.

(9.3) Operating leases.

The total of future minimum lease payments for operating

leases is shown in the table below.

The operating leases mainly pertain to property rental, fixtures

and fittings, tools and equipment. Minimum lease payments

for operating leases of EUR 11,082 thous. (2005: EUR 9,610

thous.) in the year under review have been recognised in the

income statement.

The company changed the method that it uses for the defi-

nition of intra-Group cash-generating units in the 2006

financial year. As a result of this change of method, goodwill

is now allocated to the operational divisions in each seg-

ment. The "Service" division has also been restructured and

distributed among the other divisions. In this connection, 

goodwill of EUR 1,454 thous. which was allocated mainly to

the "Service" division was amortised. These impairments are

assigned to the "Western Europe" segment. 

The goodwill of the operating divisions developed as follows

in the year under review:

"Sub Tec" division 30,315 260 -144 0 30,431

"Water Tec" division 17,018 391 -302 0 17,107

"Small Circulators" division 1,070 6,927 -35 0 7,962

Other divisions 1,444 565 -21 -1,454 534

Total 49,847 8,143 -502 -1,454 56,034

Development of goodwill

Currency
EUR thous. 01.01.2006 Additions translation Amortisation 31.12.2006

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Land and buildings 55,365 52,870

Plant and machinery 33,828 29,386

Fixtures and fittings, 
tools and equipment 36,099 38,246

Payments on account 
and tangible assets in
course of construction 8,789 3,080

Total 134,081 123,582

Tangible assets 

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Buildings 4,996 5,279

Plant and machinery 707 0

Fixtures and fittings, 
tools and equipment 3,191 2,739

Total 8,894 8,018

Net asset values of finance leases

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Total minimum
lease payments 9,444 9,159

Interest portion -1,400 -1,606

Present value 8,044 7,553

Due within one year 2,284 1,717

Due within in 1 to 5 years 4,407 4,093

Due after 5 years 1,353 1,743

Minimum lease payments

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Total minimum
lease payments 26,641 28,672

Due within one year 7,896 8,758

Due within 1 to 5 years 14,610 17,025

Due after 5 years 4,135 2,889

Operating leases
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The management board is of the opinion that the carrying

amount of trade accounts receivable and other receivables

approximates their fair value. Bad debt provisions in the

amount of EUR 8,484 thous. (2005: EUR 8,246 thous.) were

formed. There are no restrictions on the assignment of

receivables.

Trade receivables include POC receivables of EUR 1,621 thous.

(2005: EUR 1,857 thous.). These were offset against advances

received of EUR 412 thous. (2005: EUR 1,671 thous.). In these

receivables the cost of sales, including profits proportionate

to the percentage of completion of customer-specific con-

struction contracts, exceed the advances received. The total 

cost of sales and profit proportionate to percentage of com-

pletion in respect of contracts still in progress on the reporting

date is EUR 2,033 thous. (2005: EUR 3,528 thous.). In the

2006 financial year, customer advances of EUR 527 thous.

(2005: EUR 1,671 thous.) were received and offset against

POC receivables and liabilities. POC liabilities of EUR 115 thous.

(2005: EUR 0) existed on the reporting date and are recognised

under current liabilities (see section [9.11] in the Notes).

*Securities amounting to EUR 1 thous. at 31 December 2006 (2005: EUR 1
thous.) will be reported in the balance sheet as other assets from 2006
onwards. The relevant adjustment for 2005 has been made.

(9.4) Investments stated at equity.

The investments stated at equity consist exclusively of the

shareholding in the jointly controlled entity, WILO Middle

East LLC, Riyadh/Saudi Arabia. See section [4.] in the Notes

for further information.

(9.5) Other financial assets.

The increase in shares in affiliated companies is essentially

due to the acquisition of CCD Pumps Ltd., London/United

Kingdom. See section [4.] in the Notes for further information.

(9.6) Inventories. 

Inventory impairment write-downs of EUR 14,573 thous.

(2005: EUR 12,466 thous.) were made based on the gross

value of EUR 149,574 thous. (2005: EUR 123,823 thous.).

Inventory write-downs of EUR 2,107 thous. (2005: EUR 633

thous.) in the period under review were recognised in the

income statement as cost of sales.

There are no restrictions on the disposal of inventories, with

the exception of the customary suppliers' lien.

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Shares in
affiliated companies 6,527 1,217

Investments in associates 46 46

Securities 59 43

Other loans 1,671 977

Counter insurance claims 3,374 3,411

Total 11,677 5,694

Other financial assets

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Raw materials and supplies 36,340 37,737

Work in progress 14,974 11,815

Finished goods 83,419 60,236

Payments on account 268 1,569

Total 135,001 111,357

Inventories

Trade accounts receivable 186,522 186,349 173 169,662 169,391 271

Accounts receivable from  
jointly controlled entities 50 50 0 0 0 0

Accounts receivable from  
affiliated companies 358 358 0 367 367 0

Other assets* 15,461 13,560 1,901 14,860 13,164 1,696

Total 202,391 200,317 2,074 184,889 182,922 1,967

Trade accounts receivable, other receivables and other assets

31.12.2006 31.12.2005
thereof with a residual term of thereof with a residual term of

EUR thous. Total < 1 year > 1 year Total < 1 year > 1 year

(9.7) Trade accounts receivable, other receivables and other assets.
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with certain financial ratios which are customary in the market

(ratio of consolidated priority debt to consolidated total

assets and ratio of consolidated net indebtedness to consoli-

dated EBITDA). The agreement also provides for the cus-

tomary termination reasons.

The financial liabilities include 5 loans in a total amount of

EUR 38.0 mill. (2005: EUR 38.0 mill.). The outstanding liability

on the reporting date was EUR 17.4 mill. (2005: EUR 24.8 mill.)

and it is divided into a non-current and a current portion in

accordance with the amortisation schedule. The current

portion is reported under current financial liabilities. The

non-current portion has terms which expire between 2009

and 2013. The fixed annual rates of interest on these loans

and the senior notes range from 3.9% to 7.3%. 

Collateral for three loans is provided by the land charges of

EUR 10.0 mill. on the company premises in Hof/Germany,

Heimgartenstrasse 1-3.

The trade accounts payable and other liabilities have residual

terms of between 1 and 5 years. 

The management board assumes that the carrying amount

of non-current liabilities corresponds to their fair value.

Provisions for pensions.

Provisions for pensions are formed in respect of defined

benefit obligations and short-term benefits paid to eligible

active and former employees of the WILO Group and their

surviving relatives on the basis of defined benefit plans. The

amounts of benefit payments depend on country-specific

circumstances and are generally based on duration of service

with the company and salary. The amount of these provisi-

ons is based on actuarial assessments of existing pension

obligations which are carried out every year. The expenses

arising from pension commitments are distributed in accord-

ance with the actuarial report over the employee's length of

service with the company and comprise personnel costs

and interest costs. Pension expenses are allocated to the

relevant functional areas. Interest costs will be reported in

the financial result from this year onwards, and the previous

year's figure has been adjusted accordingly (see section [7.]

in the Notes). Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10%

of the greater of the defined benefit obligation or the fair

value of plan assets are distributed over the average remaining

years of service of the active employees participating in the

plan. The WILO AG defined benefit plan was discontinued

on 31 December 2005. A defined contribution plan has been

set up in its place in respect of WILO AG employees for whom

pension promises exist as of 1 January 2006. The costs

associated with setting up the defined contribution plan in

the year under review were EUR 28 thous.

(9.8) Cash.

Cash in the amount of EUR 59,332 thous. (2005: EUR 16,138

thous.) mainly comprise liquid funds and sight deposits held

with banks. Restricted cash amounts to EUR 52 thous. (2005:

EUR 372 thous.).

(9.9) Equity.

The development of Group equity in the period 1 January 2005

to 31 December 2006 is shown in the statement of changes

in equity. Other earnings reserves and consolidated retained

earnings were combined in the earnings reserves on the

reporting date. The figures for the previous year have been

adjusted accordingly. 

WILO AG's share capital was EUR 26,000 thous. on the report-

ing date and it is paid up in full. It is grouped in 10,000,000

no-par registered shares that are not freely transferable.

The statutory profit reserve comprises 10% of the holding

company WILO AG's paid-up capital pursuant to § 150, para-

graph 2 of the German Corporation Law (AktG). 

Minority interests are held by shareholders in Mather & Platt

Pumps Ltd., Pune/India and Mather & Platt Fire Systems Ltd.,

Pune/India.

At 31 December 2006, 173,000 (2005: 240,000) shares of

treasury stock with a carrying amount of EUR 5,533 thous.

(2005: EUR 4,200 thous.) were acquired and deducted from

equity for acquisitions and disposals in the reporting period.

The shares in circulation have developed as follows:

Total dividend payments of EUR 18,747 thous. (2005: EUR

16,400 thous.) were made in the 2006 financial year. This cor-

responds to a dividend per share of EUR 1.90 (2005: EUR 1.64).

(9.10) Non-current liabilities.

With effect from 21 March 2006, WILO AG took up senior

notes with a total value of EUR 67.5 mill. (USD 80 mill., in 2

tranches of USD 40 mill. each) and terms to 2013 and 2016

respectively within the scope of an US private placement.

The senior notes are subject to a fixed rate of interest over

their entire term and they are hedged against currency rate

fluctuation with a derivative financial instrument. They are

not secured. The company is required to ensure conformity

Number of shares 2006 2005

At 1 January 9,760,000 10,000,000

Treasury stock aquisitions -160,000 -240,000

Treasury stock disposals 227,000 0

At 31 December 9,827,000 9,760,000

Shares in circulation

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Financial liabilities 77,772 25,278

thereof with a residual term
of > 1 < 5 years 15,243 21,564
of > 5 years 62,529 3,714

Trade accounts payable 3,257 2,687

Other liabilities 14,328 12,905

Deferred tax liabilities 19,508 17,339

Non-current liabilities
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4. The fair value of plan assets developed as shown below:

Plan assets mainly consist of qualifying insurance policies

with a minimum return. They do not include financial instru-

ments issued by the WILO Group, property or other assets

which are used by the WILO Group. The current return from

plan assets in the year under review was EUR 125 thous.

(2005: EUR 123 thous.). Expected contributions to plan

assets in coming years cannot be reliably estimated on the

reporting date. 

5. The present value of defined benefit obligations and the

fair value of plan assets are reconciled to the provisions for

pensions as shown below:

6. The present value of defined benefit obligations and the

fair value of plan assets on the last three reporting dates are

shown below:

The notes to the provisions for pensions are as follows:

1. The development of provisions for pensions in the year

under review is shown below:

A reinsurance policy has been concluded to cover provision-

financed pension obligations of EUR 3,374 thous. (2004:

EUR 3,411 thous.).

2. Pension expenses are broken down as follows:

The total actuarial loss at 31 December 2006 is EUR 5,931

thous. (2005: EUR 9,941 thous.), which up to an amount of

EUR 4,516 thous. (2005: EUR 4,762 thous.) is within the

10% corridor. The amount of EUR 1,415 thous. (2005: EUR

5,179 thous.) by which the corridor was exceeded in 2006

will be distributed over the average remaining years of service

of the active employees participating in the plan. 

3. The present value of defined benefit obligations developed

as follows in the year under review:

The reduction of actuarial loss in 2006 is mainly due to the

higher discount rate of 4.30% (2005: 3.75%). 

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Provisions for pensions 
at 1 January 35,898 34,230

Pension expenses 3,678 4,210

Pension payments -2,470 -2,542

Changes to the basis
of consolidation,
currency effects, 
other changes -217 0

Provisions for pensions
at 31 December 36,889 35,898

Development of provisions for pensions

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Current service cost 1,502 1,486

Past service cost 8 0

Interest expense 1,751 2,829

Expected return
on plan assets -147 -123

Amortisation of
actuarial losses 564 18

Total 3,678 4,210

Pension expenses

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Present value at 1 January 47,625 36,472

Current service cost 1,502 1,486

Interest expense 1,751 2,829

Past service cost 106 0

Actuarial (gains) and losses -4,010 7,612

Pension payments -2,470 -2,542

Changes to the basis
of consolidation,
currency effects, 
other changes 661 1,768

Present value at 31 December 45,165 47,625

thereof: funded 3,492 2,934

thereof: not funded 41,673 44,691

Present value of defined benefit obligations

EUR thous. 2006 2005

Fair value at 1 January 2,479 2,356

Expected return 147 123

Actuarial losses -22 0

Changes to the basis
of consolidation,
currency effects, 
other changes 351 0

Fair value at 31 December 2,955 2,479

Fair value of plan assets

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Present value of
funded defined
benefit obligations 3,492 2,934

Minus the fair value of
plan assets -2,955 -2,479

Deficit of plan assets 537 455

Present value of 
non-funded defined
benefit obligations 41,673 44,691

Past service cost 106 0

Actuarial losses -5,931 -9,941

36,385 35,205

Foreign plan assets
which are recognised
in the balance sheet 439 514

Other changes 65 179

Provisions for pensions 36,889 35,898

Reconciliation to provisions for pensions

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05 31.12.04

Present value of 
defined benefit obligations 45,165 47,625 36,472

Fair value of plan assets -2,955 -2,479 -2,356

Deficit 42,210 45,146 34,116

Coverage of defined benefit obligations
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Current liabilities due to banks predominantly consist of

overdrafts, short-term money market loans and the current

portion of non-current liabilities which will be repaid in

2007. Trade accounts payable and other liabilities consist of

outstanding liabilities for products delivered, services rendered

and current expenses. Liabilities in respect of personnel

include accumulated holiday pay, management bonuses and

gratuities, employer's liability insurance contributions and

severance pay. The other liabilities include charges for tax

consulting services, commissions, bonuses and other liabilities.

The other liabilities also include POC liabilities of EUR 115

thous. (2005: EUR 0) in which the advances received for

customer-specific construction contracts exceed the cost

of sales.

The management board assumes that the carrying amount

of current liabilities corresponds to their fair value.

Provisions.

Provisions for taxes mainly include income tax for the year

under review which was not paid within the scope of advance

tax payments during the year.

The warranty provisions are formed in respect of potential

warranty claims. They are oriented on past experience and

planned measures.

The provision for bonuses and rebates was formed mainly in

respect of reimbursements to customers in 2006.

The provision for anniversary gratuities is formed for WILO

Group employees. The amount of the gratuity paid depends on

the employee's length of service and any internal agreements

that have been concluded.

Provisions for similar obligations.

Provisions for similar obligations amounted to EUR 6,517

thous. in 2006 (2005: EUR 7,542 thous.). They include obli-

gations for the part-time employment scheme for elderly

employees at WILO AG of EUR 5,433 thous. (2005: EUR

6,290 thous.). The fair value of plan assets on the reporting

date of EUR 1,697 thous. (2005: EUR 1,863 thous.) was

deducted. The discount rate for the calculation of obligations

relating to the part-time employment scheme for elderly

employees at 31 December 2006 was 4.30% (2005: 4.81%). 

(9.11) Current liabilities.

Warranty provisions.

The warranty provisions are made in accordance with past

experience and planned measures. The interest cost for war-

ranty provisions was EUR 34 thous. in 2006.

Warranty provisions 3,014 443 -46 -224 -81 709 3,815

Warranty provisions

Consol- Currency
EUR thous. 01.01.2006 idations translation Utilisations Reversal Additions 31.12.2006

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Liabilities due to banks 21,020 27,156

Trade accounts payable 62,790 54,684

Other liabilities 77,557 59,367

Thereof

Payments on account 4,828 4,490

Notes payable 8,257 5,969

Liabilities to jointly controlled entities 2,720 0

Other liabilities in respect of taxes 11,095 10,835

Liabilities in respect of personnel 19,813 17,049

Other liabilities in respect of social security 4,255 5,833

Other liabilities 26,589 15,191

Current liabilities

Provisions for taxes 9,086 0 -168 -8,846 -72 5,260 5,260

Warranty provisions 8,333 0 -44 -1,884 -255 2,950 9,100

Bonuses and rebates 7,898 0 2 -5,897 -726 8,288 9,565

Anniversary gratuities 1,466 0 0 -6 -227 230 1,463

Other provisions 7,368 792 -41 -6,370 -1,082 7,306 7,973

Total 34,151 792 -251 -23,003 -2,362 24,034 33,361

Current provisions

Consoli- Currency
EUR thous. 01.01.2006 dations translation Utilisation Reversals Additions 31.12.2006
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The assets stated in segment reports by geographical region

correspond to the assets recognised in the balance sheet as

shown below.

The liabilities stated in segment reports by geographical

region correspond to the provisions and liabilities recogni-

sed in the balance sheet as shown below.

The assets stated in segment reports by business segment

correspond to the assets recognised in the balance sheet as

shown below.

Central services comprise all tangible and intangible assets

which cannot be broken down by business segment.

The figures for each segment are presented in a separate

statement which is shown on pages 126 and 127.

(10.) Consolidated cash flow statement.

The consolidated cash flow statement is broken down into

cash flows from operating activities, investment activities and

financing activities. The effects of exchange rate fluctuation

on liquid funds are shown separately. Liquid funds comprise

cash holdings and sight deposits held with banks.

The initial value of the consolidated cash flow statement is

the EBIT which is derived from the income statement (see

section [8.11] in the Notes).

The impact of changes to the basis of consolidation are

detailed in section [4.] in the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

(11.) Segment reporting.

In accordance with IAS 14 (Segment Reporting), the data

pertaining to the Group's activities is broken down by geo-

graphical region as the primary reporting format and by

business segment as the secondary reporting format. The

segments are structured according to the risks and rewards

of the Group and correspond to its internal organisational

and management structure and system of reporting to the

management board and the supervisory board. Segment

information by geographical region and business segment is

reported after consolidation of intra-segment and inter-

segment transactions. Inter-segment sales are also shown in

the segment reports.

When segment information is provided by geographical region,

external sales are oriented on the customer's domicile.

Segment information by business segment is oriented on

customer use of WILO's products.

Segment information is prepared in accordance with the

accounting policies used for the underlying consolidated

financial statements. The values are consolidated within the

individual segments. Inter-segment transfers are segment

revenues from transactions with other segments. The segment

results include the earnings before interest and tax (EBIT)

and minority interest. The assets that are allocated to geo-

graphical segments correspond to the total assets reported

in the balance sheet, not including deferred tax assets.

The assets that are allocated to business segments include

trade receivables, inventories, property, plant and equipment

and intangible assets if a breakdown of these if feasible.

Segment liabilities include all debts except for provisions for

taxes, liabilities due to banks and deferred tax liabilities.

The investments are acquisitions of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets. Consolidated sales to trading

companies were effected at the prices which are customary

in the market; supplies to production companies were effected

according to the cost plus principle.

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Assets 603,697 495,148

Deferred tax assets 18,628 15,220

Assets in the balance sheet 622,325 510,368

Assets by geographical region

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Liabilities 233,254 201.162

Liabilities due to banks 98,792 52,434

Provisions for taxes 5,260 9,086

Deferred tax liabilities 19,508 17,339

Provisions and liabilities 356,814 280,021

Liabilities by geographical region

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Assets 396,557 338,676

Central services 118,632 119,413

Financial assets 13,715 5,694

Other assets and tax claims 15.460 15,226

Securities and cash 59,333 16,139

Deferred tax assets 18,628 15,220

Assets in the balance sheet 622,325 510,368

Assets by business segment
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(13.) Other information.

(13.1) Waive of disclosure. 

The following Group companies took recourse to the waive

of disclosure pursuant to § 264, paragraph 3 of the German

Commercial Code (HGB): WILO EMU GmbH, Hof/Austria,

WILO-Mitarbeiter-Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH, Dortmund/

Germany and WILO Nord Amerika GmbH, Dortmund/Germany.

(13.2) Legal disputes.

In the 2006 financial year, the Federal Antitrust Commission

initiated an investigation into enterprises operating in the

pump industry to ascertain whether they were breaching

antitrust law. WILO AG is also affected by this investigation.

The Federal Antitrust Commission implemented investigative

measures on the premises of WILO AG. Official proceedings

have not yet been instituted against the companies in question.

At this early stage in the investigation, it is not possible to

foresee any possible financial consequences for WILO AG

with adequate certainty.

(13.3) Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations.

No provisions were formed for the following contingent

liabilities, which are recognised at nominal value, because the

probability of the risk becoming manifest is assessed as low:

Contingent liabilities on guarantees and warranties existed at

31 December 2006 in respect of contracts with a nominal

value of EUR 758 thous. and an agreed residual term of less

than one year, while nominal liabilities of EUR 2,371 thous.

existed for contracts with an agreed residual term of more

than one year. Indefinite guarantees and warranties with a

nominal liability of EUR 4,579 thous. also exist. 

Purchase commitments for planned investments in tangible

assets amount to EUR 7,889 thous. (2005: EUR 6,133 thous.)

and EUR 653 thous. (2005: EUR 0) for intangible assets.

It is impracticable to estimate the financial impact or state

uncertainties as regards the amount or due date of outward

flows of funds or reimbursement options in connection with

contingent liabilities.

(12.) Derivative financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are used for hedging pur-

poses and include interest rate and currency swaps, forward

exchange transactions and options as well as futures and

options contracts on commodities. They are utilised in accord-

ance with a pro-active financial risk management policy to

hedge against or eliminate risks arising from potential

exchange rate fluctuations in respect of posted, floating and

planned underlying transactions. The general credit risk

arising from these transactions is low because they are only

concluded with banks that have an immaculate credit stand-

ing. All derivatives are recognised at their fair values, which 

means that all changes to fair value are directly recognised in

the income statement. The fair value of forward exchange

transactions is calculated on the basis of the average spot

exchange rate on the reporting date, taking the forward pre-

miums and discounts for the remaining term of the contract

versus the agreed forward exchange rate into account. In the

case of interest rate swaps, fair value is measured by dis-

counting the expected future cash flow based on the market

rates that apply for the remaining term of the contracts.

Futures and option contracts on commodities are measured

on the basis of the relevant market prices and forward pre-

miums and discounts. Fair value is measured by banks.

The interest result includes gains of EUR 1,621 thous. 

(2005: EUR 1,410 thous.) and losses of EUR 8,559 thous.

(2005: EUR 301 thous.) (see [8.9] in the Notes).

Forward exchange transactions -295 0 0 -80 -215 13,951 2,739

Interest rate and currency swaps 192 64 -4,454 -226 -3,972 73,243 65,000

Forward exchange options 69 0 0 66 3 9,862 3,667

Commodity derivatives -612 0 0 1,703 -2,315 20,130 5,875

Derivative financial instruments

Fair value Nominal volume
Maturity as of 31/12/2006

EUR thous. < 1 year > 1 < 5 years > 5 years Prior year change  31.12.2006 31.12.2005

EUR thous. 31.12.06 31.12.05

Contingent liabilities

in respect of guarantees 4,269 2,717

in respect of warranties 3,439 2,109

Total 7,708 4,826

Contingent liabilities
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One of the shareholders owns a heating and air-conditioning

installation firm which purchases pumps in quantities com-

mensurate to its size from the reporting entity. This firm also

installs and performs maintenance on the heating and air-

conditioning systems of the reporting entity. These services

are remunerated at the terms and conditions which are cus-

tomary in this market. In 2006, sales of EUR 64 thous. (2004:

EUR 39 thous.) were transacted with the heating and air-con-

ditioning installation firm. On 31 December 2006, the firm's

liabilities to the reporting entity were EUR 24 thous. (2005:

EUR 796 thous.), EUR 0 (2005: EUR 766 thous.) of which in

respect of a loan. The liability amounted to EUR 159 thous.

(2005: EUR 120 thous.) at 31 December 2006.

In the prior year, a loan of EUR 137 thous. was made to a former

member of the management board at standard market terms

and conditions. It was paid back in full in the year under review.

Approved consulting agreements exist with the members of

the supervisory board. These agreements were associated with

total remuneration in 2006 of EUR 208 thous. (2005: EUR

225 thous.), EUR 139 thous. (2005: EUR 50 thous.) of which

had not been paid on 31 December 2006.

Lease agreements in respect of land and buildings which are

directly or indirectly owned by shareholders also exist. Total

lease payments of EUR 176 thous. (2005: EUR 246 thous.)

were made to shareholders in 2006. The agreed amount of

rent is in conformity with the market rate. A lease agreement

also exists in respect of a building owned by a company in

which a family member of a former management board

member and one shareholder have a participatory interest.

EUR 414 thous. (2005: EUR 459 thous.) in rental payments

were made in 2006. Resulting finance lease liabilities of EUR

2,260 thous. (2005: EUR 2,453 thous.) existed on the report-

ing date. A suretyship of EUR 1,100 thous. was furnished to

the company in 2005 and remained in existence in the year

under review.

In the year under review, a consulting agreement was con-

cluded with a member of the founder's family in the amount

of EUR 60 thous. (2005: EUR 0) which will be paid out in

total in the 2007 financial year.

(13.7) Remuneration of the management board and the

supervisory board.

The total remuneration of the management board amounted

to EUR 2.4 mill. (2005: EUR 1.6 mill.) in 2006. EUR 0.8 mill.

(2005: EUR 0.8 mill.) of this relates to fixed remuneration and

EUR 1.6 mill. (2005: EUR 0.8 mill.) to variable remuneration.

The total remuneration of former members of the management

board amounted to EUR 0.5 mill. in 2006 (2005: EUR 0.5 mill.).

The remuneration of the supervisory board was EUR 0.1 mill.

(2005: EUR 0.1 mill.). On the reporting date, a pension provi-

sion of EUR 2.3 mill. (2005: EUR 2.2 mill.) was recognised in

the balance sheet for members of the management board.

Additions for the 2006 financial year amounted to EUR 0.1 mill.

(2005: EUR 0.6 mill.). On the reporting date, a pension provi-

sion of EUR 7.3 mill. (2005: EUR 7.3 mill.) was recognised in

respect of former members of executive bodies. 

(13.4) Average number of employees over the year.

The average number of employees over the year was as follows:

At the balance sheet date, the number of employees was

5,619 (2005: 4,985). This increase in the number of employees

on the reporting date is essentially due to the first-time con-

solidation of entities in 2006. Personnel expenses amounted

to EUR 205.7 mill. (2005: EUR 187.0 mill.).  

(13.5) Events after the balance sheet date.

The management board of WILO AG approved the consolidated

financial statements for submission to the supervisory board

on 19 March 2007. It is the responsibility of the supervisory

board to examine the consolidated financial statements and

to state whether it endorses them.

The management board proposed at the shareholders' meeting

of WILO AG on 30 March 2007 the payment of a EUR 2.25

dividend per share and that the remaining net profit of WILO

AG be carried forward to new account. These dividend pay-

ments are not reported under liabilities in these consolidated

financial statements.

(13.6) Related party disclosures.

All business transactions with non-consolidated subsidiaries,

jointly controlled entities or associated companies of WILO AG,

which consist exclusively of the supply of products and

services, are carried out at the terms and conditions which are

customary in the market. The total receivables due from these

companies amount to EUR 408 thous. (2005: EUR 367 thous.).

In addition to the receivables due, a liability of EUR 2,720

thous. (2005: EUR 0) exists in respect of WILO Middle East

LLC. Sales and services charged to these companies amount

to EUR 1,024 thous. (2005: EUR 0). 

In the 2006 financial year, members of the supervisory board

paid a purchase price of EUR 2,100 thous. to acquire 120,000

shares in WILO AG and sold 134,400 shares for the price of

EUR 6,649 thous. On 31 December 2006, 80,000 shares in

WILO AG were owned by members of the supervisory board.

In the 2006 financial year, members of the management

board paid a purchase price of EUR 1,265 thous. to acquire

72,000 shares in WILO AG and sold 12,400 shares in WILO AG

for the price of EUR 754 thous. On 31 December 2006,

72,000 shares in WILO AG were owned by members of the

management board. As a result of these transactions, the

company reports 173,000 shares as treasury stock with a

carrying value of EUR 5,533 thous. at 31 December 2006.

2006 2005

Production 2,689 2,202

Sales and administration 2,639 2,086

Total 5,328 4,288

Germany 1,738 1,638

Overseas 3,590 2,650

Total 5,328 4,288

Employees



163162

(13.8) Executive bodies.

Supervisory Board.

Dr. Heinz-Gerd Stein
Dinslaken, Germany
Chairman
from 8 April 2006

Prof. Dr. Rudi Noppen
Gauting, Germany
Chairman
until 8 April 2006

Dr. h.c. Jochen Opländer (Dipl.-Ing.)
Dortmund, Germany
Deputy Chairman

Herbert H. Jacobi
Düsseldorf, Germany

Jochen Opländer (Dipl.-Wirt.-Ing.)
Dortmund, Germany
from 8 April 2006

Dieter Ortwein
Dortmund, Germany

Heinz-Peter Schmitz
Dortmund, Germany

Dortmund, 19 March 2007
The Management Board

Management Board.

Dr. Horst Dieter Elsner
Frechen, Germany
Chairman

Oliver Hermes
Essen, Germany
from 1 October 2006

Jérôme Xavier Alexis Perrod
Boulogne, France

Dr. Thomas Schweisfurth
Dortmund, Germany

Oliver Hermes Jérôme Perrod Dr. Thomas SchweisfurthDr. Horst D. Elsner
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Shareholdings of WILO AG.

Amount of holding in %

Allied Centrifugal Pumps Pvt. Ltd. Calcutta / India 100.00

Bombas WILO-SALMSON Portugal – Sistemas Hidráulicos, Lda. Porto / Portugal 100.00

CCD Pumps Ltd. London / United Kingdom **) 100.00

Circulating Pumps Ltd. King’s Lynn, Norfolk / United Kingdom *) 100.00

EMB Pumpen AG Rheinfelden / Switzerland 100.00

EMU Ile de France S.A.R.L. Ste. Geneviève-des-Bois / France ***) 50.00

EMUPORT Abwassersysteme GmbH Minden / Germany 100.00

FLOM S.A.R.L. Couzon au Mont d’Or / France *) 100.00

Mather & Platt Fire Systems Ltd. Pune / India 55.48

Mather & Platt Pumps Ltd. Pune / India 62.84

POMPES SALMSON (S.E.A.) Pte. Ltd. Singapore / Singapore **) 100.00

POMPES SALMSON S.A.S. Chatou / France 100.00

Rotaqua GmbH Rheinfelden / Switzerland 100.00

S.E.S.E.M. S.A.S. Saint-Denis / France 100.00

SALMSON Argentina S.A. Buenos Aires / Argentina 100.00

SALMSON Italia s.r.l. Modena / Italy 100.00

SALMSON South Africa Ltd. Johannesburg / South Africa 100.00

STEMMA S.R.L. Trissino / Italy 100.00

WILO (UK) Ltd. Burton-on-Trent / United Kingdom 100.00

WILO Adriatic d.o.o. Ljubljana / Slovenia 100.00

WILO Baltic SIA Riga / Latvia 100.00

WILO Bel o.o.o. Minsk / Byelorussia 100.00

WILO Beograd d.o.o. Belgrade / Serbia and Montenegro 100.00

WILO Bulgaria EOOD Sofia / Bulgaria 100.00

WILO Canada Inc. Calgary / Canada 100.00

WILO Caspian LLC Baku / Azerbaijan *) 100.00

WILO Central Asia TOO Almaty / Kazakhstan 100.00

WILO Danmark A/S Karlslunde / Denmark 100.00

WILO Eesti OÜ Tallinn / Estonia **) 100.00

WILO ELEC CO. Ltd. Qinhuangdao / China *) 100.00

WILO EMU Anlagenbau GmbH Roth / Germany 100.00

WILO EMU GmbH Hof / Germany 100.00

WILO-EMU Taiwan Co. Ltd. Taipeh / Taiwan 100.00

WILO-EMU USA LLC Thomasville / USA 100.00

WILO Engineering Ltd. Limerick / Irleand 100.00

WILO Finland OY Espoo / Finland 100.00

WILO France S.A.S. Coignières / France 100.00

Shareholdings of WILO AG

Amount of holding in %

WILO Handelsgesellschaft mbH Vienna / Austria 100.00

WILO Hellas A.B.E.E. Athens / Greece 100.00

WILO Hrvatska d.o.o. Zagreb / Croatia 100.00

WILO Ibérica S.A. Alcalá de Henares / Spain 100.00

WILO Industriebeteiligungen mbH Dortmund / Germany *) 100.00

WILO Intec S.A.S. Aubigny / France 100.00

WILO Italia s.r.l. Peschiera Borromeo (Milan) / Italy 100.00

WILO Lietuva UAB Vilnius / Lithuania 100.00

WILO Magyarország Kft. Törökbálint / Hungary 100.00

WILO Middle East LLC Riyadh / Saudi Arabia ****) 50.00

WILO-Mitarbeiter-Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH Dortmund / Germany 100.00

WILO N.V./S.A. Ganshoren (Brussels) / Belgium 100.00

WILO Nederland b.v. Beverwijk / The Netherlands 100.00

WILO Nord Amerika GmbH Dortmund / Germany 100.00

WILO Norge AS Larvik / Norway 100.00

WILO Polska Sp.z.o.o. Raszyn (Warsaw) / Poland 100.00

WILO Pompa Sistemleri San. Ve Tic. A.S. Istanbul / Turkey 100.00

WILO Praha s.r.o. Prague / Czech Republic 100.00

WILO Pumps Ltd. Kimhae / Korea 100.00

WILO Pumps Ltd. Limerick / Irleand 100.00

WILO Romania s.r.l. Bucharest / Romania 100.00

WILO Rus o.o.o. Moscow / Russia 100.00

WILO-SALMSON (Beijing) Pump System Ltd. Beijing / China 100.00

WILO-SALMSON Automotive Pumps S.A.S. Chatou / France **) 100.00

WILO-SALMSON France S.A.S. Chatou / France 100.00

WILO-SALMSON Lebanon S.A.R.L. Beirut / Lebanon 100.00

WILO Slovakia s.r.o. Bratislava / Republic of Slovakia 100.00

WILO Sverige AB Växjö / Sweden 100.00

WILO Ukrainia t.o.w. Kiev / Ukraine 100.00

WILO USA LLC Chicago / USA 100.00

*) These companies were consolidated for the first time in 2006.
**) These companies were not included in the 2006 consolidated financial statements.
***) This is an associated company that is reported in the balance sheet at cost.
****) This is a joint venture company that is reported in the balance sheet at equity.

Shareholdings of WILO AG
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Table of the rates used for currency translation.

Argentina ARS 4.0478 3.5920 3.8894 3.6321

Azerbaijan ANZ 1.1530 1.1262

Bulgaria BGN 1.9558 1.9558 1.9558 1.9558

Byelorussia BYR 2,820.0000 2,555.0000 2,709.1667 2,671.5000

Canada CAD 1.5294 1.3769 1.4259 1.4988

China CNY 10.2915 9.5515 10.0499 10.1344

Croatia HRK 7.3503 7.3625 7.3177 7.3928

Czech Republic CZK 27.4350 28.9900 28.2317 29.7575

Denmark DKK 7.4558 7.4603 7.4591 7.4527

Hungary HUF 251.6750 252.6650 264.1650 248.6283

India INR 58.3200 53.2800 57.2208 54.6150

Kazakhstan KZT 167.2400 158.5100 158.7117 165.0925

Korea KRW 1,226.0000 1,191.0000 1,200.4167 1,265.8208

Latvia LVL 0.6971 0.6967 0.6963 0.6960

Lebanon LBP 1,993.0000 1,788.0000 1,904.6667 1.870.7608

Lithuania LTL 3.4530 3.4528 3.4528 3.4524

Norway NOK 8.2400 8.0000 8.0461 8.0079

Poland PLN 3.8413 3.8686 3.9074 4.0329

Romania RON 3.4580 3.6800 3.5234 3.6799

Russia RUB 34.2400 33.9700 33.9833 35.0175

Serbia CSD 79.1200 85.6490 84.3257 83.4324

Singapore SGD 2.0213 1.9688 1.9972 2.0614

Slovakia SKK 34.3850 37.8700 37.0533 38.5742

Slovenia SIT 239.6400 239.5400 239.5667 239.5167

South Africa ZAR 9.2150 7.4890 8.6303 7.8845

Sweden SEK 9.0430 9.3930 9.2523 9.2981

Switzerland CHF 1.6080 1.5555 1.5768 1.5476

Taiwan TWD 42.9010 38.9500 41.0543 39.8646

Turkey TRY 1.8775 1.5950 1.8171 1.6577

Ukraine UAH 6.6360 5.9860 6.3650 6.3182

United Kingdom GBP 0.6714 0.6870 0.6819 0.6832

USA USD 1.3181 1.1834 1.2631 1.2380

Currency translation rates

Balance sheet Statement of income
Average rate on 31.12. Average rate

1 € = 2006 2005 2006 2005

Auditor’s Report.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements pre-

pared by the WILO AG, Dortmund, comprising the balance

sheet, the income statement, statement of changes in equity,

cash flow statement and the notes to the consolidated

financial statements, together with the group management

report for the business year from 1 January 2006 to 31

December 2006. The preparation of the consolidated financial

statements and the group management report in accordance

with IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, and the additional require-

ments of German commercial law pursuant to § 315a para-

graph 1 HGB (and supplementary provisions of the shareholder

agreement/articles of incorporation) are the responsibility of

the parent company’s management. Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements

and on the group management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial state-

ments in accordance with § 317 HGB [Handelsgesetzbuch

“German Commercial Code”] and German generally accepted

standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated

by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW). Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit such that miss-

tatements materially affecting the presentation of the net

assets, financial position and results of operations in the

consolidated financial statements in accordance with the

applicable financial reporting framework and in the group

management report are detected with reasonable assurance.

Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and

legal environment of the Group and expectations as to possible

misstatements are taken into account in the determination

of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-

related internal control system and the evidence supporting

the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and

the group management report are examined primarily on a

test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes

assessing the annual financial statements of those entities

included in consolidation, the determination of entities to be

included in consolidation, the accounting and consolidation

principles used and significant estimates made by manage-

ment, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements and group management

report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consoli-

dated financial statements comply with IFRSs, as adopted by

the EU, the additional requirements of German commercial

law pursuant to § 315a Abs. 1 HGB and give a true and fair

view of the net assets, financial position and results of opera-

tions of the Group in accordance with these requirements.

The group management report is consistent with the consoli-

dated financial statements and as a whole provides a suitable

view of the Group’s position and suitably presents the

opportunities and risks of future development.

Essen, 20 March 2007

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft 

Aktiengesellschaft

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Beumer Huperz

Auditor Auditor
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Report of the Supervisory Board.

In the year under review personnel changes occurred in the

supervisory board and the management board. On conclusion

of the annual general meeting (AGM) on 8 April 2006, Prof.

Dr. Rudi Noppen resigned as the chairman and retired from the

Group’s supervisory board at his own request. Mr. Jan Opländer

was appointed as member of the supervisory board in his

place. Dr. Heinz-Gerd Stein was elected new chairman of the

supervisory board of WILO AG in the subsequent meeting of

the supervisory board on 8 April 2006. The supervisory board

thanked Prof. Dr. Rudi Noppen for his constructive and com-

petent contributions and the longstanding working relation-

ship based on trust. In the meeting on 29 September 2006

the supervisory board appointed Mr. Oliver Hermes as a new

member to the management board of WILO AG with effect

from 1 October 2006. Mr. Hermes is responsible for the

financing/controlling department. 

In terms of good, responsible management the WILO AG

and its bodies voluntarily observe the German Corporate

Governance Code in its version of 2 June 2005, and in the

amended version of 12 June 2006.

Exceptions relate on one hand to the particularities of our

company (this refers mainly to the preparation and execution

of AGMs, the publication of reports, supervisory board com-

mittees), and on the other hand to the publication of individual

remunerations of management board and supervisory board

members, which are dealt with according to legal requirements.

Details in respect of deviations from the code have again

been extensively summarised in a conformity report modelled

on § 161 of the German Corporation Law (AktG) for banks

and institutional partners.

WILO AG intends to maintain compliance with the recom-

mendations of the “Government Commission on the German

Corporate Governance Code” in its version of 12 June 2006. 

The supervisory board would like to thank the members of

the management board and all employees of the WILO Group

for their work. They have again contributed to a very successful

business year for WILO.

Dortmund, March 2007

The Supervisory Board

Dr. Heinz-Gerd Stein

Chairman

The supervisory board has routinely monitored the activities

of the management board and provided it with advice and

support during the financial year 2006. During regularly held

meetings the supervisory board has been kept informed

comprehensively about the economic development of the

WILO Group and its influencing factors. To this end the

members of the supervisory board regularly received written

reports from the management board about the current busi-

ness situation as well as ongoing and planned activities of

the Group. Measures that required the approval of the super-

visory board were discussed in detail. 

In its regular meetings in 2006 the supervisory board dealt

with various key topics. The main topic on 8 April 2006 was

the Annual Report 2005. In the meeting of 19 June 2006

the management board and the supervisory board intensely

discussed, amongst other things, the strategic orientation

of the Group and the mid-term plans for the period 2007 to

2009 submitted by the management board. Furthermore,

company acquisition of Circulating Pumps Limited, UK, and

other foreign projects were on the agenda. In September

2006 the supervisory board again attended to the aforemen-

tioned foreign projects, in particular the integration of the

acquired company, Circulating Pumps Limited. In addition, the

management board reported about selected development

projects. Then in December 2006 the supervisory board

finally approved the annual business plan for 2007. On the

agenda at the same meeting was the orientation of activities

towards Asia. 

In September 2006 the supervisory board met without the

management board. At this meeting, the efficiency of the

supervisory board and personnel issues were discussed.

The supervisory board followed the development of the

company strategy throughout the year, particularly with

regard to new production technologies, the orientation of

the product portfolio as well as human resource planning. 

The consolidated financial statements for 2006 and the annual

financial statements of WILO AG which were submitted in

conjunction with the annual report, each consisting of income

statement, balance sheet, management report and notes,

were audited by the KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft

AG, Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Essen, and furnished

with an unqualified audit opinion.

The supervisory board has examined these documents and

their content in detail. The auditors participated in the

consultation on the consolidated financial statements on

30 March 2007 to report on significant audit results of the

audit and to provide additional information. The Audit

Committee had previously done the preliminary work for the

supervisory board and had also evaluated the results of the

risk management system. 

After thorough examination the supervisory board agreed

with the opinion of the auditors. Furthermore, the supervisory

board agreed the proposal regarding the appropriation of

the net profit for the year of WILO AG.
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Glossary.

IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards): A col-

lective term for all rules and interpretations that are relevant

for the international financial statements of the WILO Group:

International Accounting Standards (IAS), International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the interpretations of

the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and of the

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

(IFRIC).

KonTraG (German Corporate Control and Transparency

Act): In accordance with this act, the supervisory board and

management board are required to implement an appropriate

early warning and risk management system.

LCC (Life Cycle Costs): All costs generated by a product

throughout its entire lifecycle. The life cycle covers all phases

from procurement, through installation, operation and main-

tenance to the decommissioning and disposal of the product.

NPSH (Net Positive Suction Head) value: A term that orig-

inated in the USA. Net positive suction head is a quantity

important in suction pump design. In simple terms, NPSH is a

method of evaluating a set of suction conditions for a pump.

OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer): Manufacturers who

use our pumps as integrated components of their products

(e.g. machine tools, wall heaters or air-conditioning systems).

Pressure booster systems: These facilitate the supply of

water in buildings where sufficient pressure of mains water is

not available to supply water to all consumers/storeys.

Pressure drainage: Inexpensive process for sewage drainage

across long distances. The sewage is transported via a narrow

bore pressure pipeline into the public sewer or directly to the

sewage treatment plant. 

ROCE (Return On Capital Employed): The interest earned on

invested capital over a specific period. 

Simultaneous engineering: A way of simultaneously designing

products, and the processes for manufacturing those prod-

ucts, through the use of cross-functional teams to assure

manufacturability, eliminate the need for later product modi-

fications and reduce cycle time. Simultaneous engineering

involves the overlapping of processes that are normally

implemented in sequence. As soon as enough information has

been obtained in one process, the next process is started up.

Solids separation system: Latest WILO technology. A system

for solids filtering before they reach the pump with immediate

backwashing that enhances efficiency by minimising the

number of backwashes required. The pre-filtering process

also effectively prevents blockages in the hydraulics.

UL (Underwriters Laboratories) certification: Underwriters

Laboratories is an organisation that was founded in the USA

in 1894 that audits and certifies products and product safety.

The UL mark can be found on many electrical products.

Wet-running pumps: In this type of pump, the rotating part

of the electric motor runs in the pumping medium. Wet-

running pumps are practically maintenance-free and operate

very quietly.

Axial split-case pumps: Pumps with an axially split volute

casing. Used for applications requiring high delivery rates in

circulation systems or for water supply, mainly in Asian coun-

tries or when plants are built according to US specifications. 

Bus technology: A technology in which several network par-

ticipants communicate via a shared communication medium. 

Cash flow: The net inflow of liquid funds from business

operations.

CIP (Continuous Improvement Process): Step-by-step con-

tinuous improvement of product, process and service quality

through teamwork. CIP is a basic principle of quality manage-

ment and an indispensable aspect of ISO 9001.

CSA (Canadian Standards Association): A non-government

organisation that establishes standards, implements safety

audits on products and certifies them. It was founded in

Canada in 1919 and now operates internationally. The CSA

issues its own mark of conformity which is very important

in the USA and Canada.

Decentralised pump system: Latest WILO technology. Unlike

conventional systems where heating pumps are centrally

installed in a boiler room, all consumers/storeys have their own

pumps. This enables the individual adjustment of the pumps

for maximum heating convenience and minimum energy

consumption.

Dry-running pumps: In this type of pump, the drive motor

does not come into contact with the pumping medium and,

as a result, the rotating part of the motor remains dry.

EBIT/EBITDA: EBIT is Earnings Before Tax and Interest. EBITDA is

Earnings Before Tax and Interest, Depreciation and Amortisation.

ECM technology: An "Electronically Commutated Motor" is a

motor in which the rotating field is generated independently

of the network frequency.

Energy efficiency class: A measure of the relative efficiency

of energy-saving electrical appliances to support purchase

decisions.

Frequency converter: Latest WILO technology. Enables the

extreme energy-saving regulation of the pump's rotational

speed, particularly in partial load operation. The pumps intel-

ligently adapt their rotational speed to requirements and

only use as much energy as is actually needed.

Geothermal heat: Heat that is stored in the upper part of the

earth's crust. It is a renewable energy source that can be

directly incorporated in heating and cooling applications with

heat pump heating systems.

High-efficiency: Efficiency is defined in terms of the ratio

of performance to total energy expended. High efficiency

means the achievement of maximum performance with the

minimum of energy consumption, which conserves natural

resources and reduces environmental damage. The best

example is the world's first high efficiency pump for heating,

air-conditioning and refrigeration applications, the WILO

Stratos. It attains advanced levels of efficiency and offers

potential energy savings of up to 80 % compared with con-

ventional pumps.

Hydrodynamics (also called fluid dynamics): An area of the

science of fluid mechanics which deals with the dynamics of

liquids and gases. It examines laminar and turbulent flows

in open and closed channels, as well as motions and power

loads in pressurised piping systems.


